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4 China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FEERRE (RE)BRDE

Financial Highlights
B AR

For the six months ended 30 June
BEAB=THILAER

2022 2021 Percentage
—E-CE —E--F change
HK$'000 HK$'000 ﬁ J:t
BETT BETT #
RESULTS 25
Revenue Wezs 21,448,683 26,495,324 -19%
EBITDA" BHE R HE
&mmr 7,047,794 8,197,532 -14%
Proft attributable to equity holders NRERBEA
of the Company }!Efﬁ B 2,811,148 3,887,378 -28%
Return on shareholders’ equity RREEEREK
~half year (%) — %t () 5.51 822 3pptt
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERRF(H() 45.76 63.28 -28%
At 30 June At 31 December
2022 2021
R-B-Zf i Percentage
~ABETH  TZA=t+-H change
HK$°000 HK$'000 ﬁ Jit
BETT BT g
FINANCIAL POSITION BB
Total assets ﬁé?‘%%ﬁ 200,011,797 200,235,628 -0.11%
Total liabilities 133,938,191 135,893,406 -1%
Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company 5 50,347,080 51,777,487 -3%
Net asset value per share attributable RARERGEARE
to equity holders of the Company (HKS) SRAEZE(BEL) 8.196 8.429 -3%
Gearing ratio (%)* BEBBLE%) 67 68 -1 pptt
Current ratio (%) TR R(%) 124 124 -
* EBITDA is the profit for the period before deduction of ~ * BRFLE - BIIE - I7 8 K% # 84 51 & F
interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation. RIMBRAE - BB - T8 REHEA
ZAREAR AF o
* ppt — percentage point " ppt—EDZ

* Gearing ratio means the ratio of total liabilities to total + BEBELRIEEELFEHEEL
assets Pl g
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ZERCEhHRE

Business Review and Prospects

FEEERE

OPERATING RESULTS

Business Overview

During the first half of 2022, volatility resulting
from the resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic
(the “Pandemic”) continued to drag on the global
economic recovery and worsen the long-term
economic damage. The anemic economic recovery,
coupled with geopolitical conflicts, soaring inflation
and other challenges, has intensified changes in the
global landscape and posed many challenges to
various industries. However, the Chinese economy
continued to show strong resilience in the face
of difficulties and hardships while surmounting
obstacles in the internal and external environment.
With the steady effect of the economic stabilisation
policy, the domestic economy has gradually
stabilised, keeping pace with China’s 14th Five-
year Plan. The country’s overall development has
continued to improve steadily.
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6 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

The 14th Five-year Plan period is a critical period
for China to respond to climate change and achieve
the goal of “Peaking Carbon Dioxide Emissions” and
“Achieving Carbon Neutrality” (“Dual Carbons”), while
also being a critical five-year period for enterprises
to achieve green and low-carbon transformations.
Achieving the “Dual Carbons” goal is not only an
extensive and profound systemic and technology
reform in economic and social aspects, but also
a huge change in production and consumption
patterns which involves systems, policies, industries,
financial markets and other facets. With respect to the
environmental protection industry, since the beginning
of the year, new industry policies continued to roll out,
covering the promotion of the development of zero
waste cities, effort to win the battle against pollution,
continued enhancement of pollution prevention and
control effort through legal measures, and reform to
the environmental information disclosure system in
accordance with the law, with an emphasis on the
strength and effectiveness of the implementation
of relevant policies. By doing so, the industry is
striving to pursue high-quality development from
all aspects. In particular, the Report on the Work of
the Government 2022 highlighted the importance
of environmental protection and the “Dual Carbons”
goal, which required continuous improvement of the
environment and promotion of green and low-carbon
development. The report also requires the creation
of a new pattern to promote economic development,
enhancement of effort in pollution control and
ecological protection and restoration, and effective
management of relations between development and
emission reduction, in an attempt to pursue harmony
between humans and nature.
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ZERCEhHRE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

As a one-stop integrated environmental management
service provider, during the period under review,
China Everbright Environment Group Limited (the
“Company” or “Everbright Environment”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), despite
the severe external challenges, was committed to its
original aspiration of carrying out “Green Business”,
focused on its major businesses, and insisted on
developing high-quality and efficient environmental
protection projects and services to protect the living
and ecological environment in various locales. At the
same time, the Group closely followed the strategic
deployment of China Everbright Group Ltd. (“China
Everbright Group”), and focused on the 4 major
areas, namely environment, resources, energy
and climate. The Group focused on “Reduction of
Pollution and Carbon Emissions” and “Pursuit of
Synergy and Efficiency”, continued the innovation-
driven development approach, and moved forward
despite all pressures and difficulties. As a result,
the Group steadily carried out the strategic
transformation and high-quality development,
solidifying its overall competitiveness and its
industry-leading position.

EKMEE)

EAE—IER - 2 HMNIRELA
AR E PR ARIRE (L
B)BRAR(TARA]HK KX
BE] BEREWBRAG - i
[ZREE ) B BEH R & m B R
=5 REBMEEEE|DOE
o BETE R BE{JEEZDS
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ANEBEMAEREIRE - BILFRIK - K
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([FREERER ) BREIE -
EIRIRE - ER - BRMA R
PURSBIE  BRAETRSBERR [ #
B ] - BIESEIFSIBRE B
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8 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

In terms of operating results, during the period under
review, the Group continued to adhere to a “steady”
pace of development, focused on pursuing high-
quality development, and steadily carried out various
works relating to development transformation,
technological innovation, corporate governance,
engineering construction, operations management
and others. The proportion of operation service
revenue in total revenue increased significantly.
Financing channels were further diversified and
finance costs were well under control, with abundant
capital and good results across all financial
indicators.

Major operating indicators in the first half of 2022 are
summarised in the table below:

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

EBRBEE)

CEEERTE  DEHR - K
CEEEERF(EREINERD
= BPESHERE BLBERE
R RFAIR - bEER T
PE® - L“Af%ﬁﬁﬁ By
T&}ERI@I{’E &R ER
1 25 ﬁttjﬂﬂaﬂ:ﬁ BERE
i — HZorit - BME KRG R
ilﬁi CEBeRM  SEYKERE

TECCFHFEEREER
BEmENT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 Change
BZ gz
—EBC-CE —T-—F
AA=1H ~A=1H
EAEA ENEA BALE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Revenue g 21,448,683 26,495,324 -19%
EBITDA PRAE - T
FrEREHAAN 7,047,794 8,197,532 -14%
Profit attributable to equity KA REREZE A
holders of the Company ELBF 2,811,148 3,887,378 -28%
Basic earnings per share  GREARZF
(HK cents) (L) 45.76 63.28 -28%
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ZERCEhHRE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

During the period under review, the Group recorded
a total revenue of HK$20,844,753,000 from its
environmental energy, greentech and environmental
water sectors, of which revenue from construction
services decreased by 44% from the first half of
2021 to HK$8,835,019,000, and revenue from
operation services increased by 17% from the first
half of 2021 to HK$9,211,286,000. The revenue from
construction services, operation services and finance
income accounted for 43%, 44% and 13% of the
total revenue, respectively.

In order to ensure the sustainable development
of the Group and provide solid capital backing for
its medium- to long-term development, the Group
continued to expand its financing channels during
the period under review and built up a portfolio of
both long- and short-term financing tools. In addition,
the Group made greater efforts to collect various
types of accounts receivables, negotiated with banks
to secure additional facility support, and obtained
various domestic subsidies amounting to RMB184
million. As at 30 June 2022, the Group had cash on
hand amounting to HK$14.713 billion, a reasonable
gearing level and healthy financial position.

RS (1)

EBBEE)

EIEEA - AEBETRRRE
B HERR  REKKEEEN
H&ﬁlm,\ /%m¥20844753000
Lo Hep » ZERBWEABE
8,835,019,0007T ' B®—_Z ——4F
FHEFTE44% 5 1BE RIS
B9 211,286,000 ' - E
T FF¥EF EF1T% o KW
thER: BERGKE - EER
U s M B ISR A 9 BlE 43% -
44%K%13% °

AREBFNAFEER
$E%%Ekmﬂ T HY) 2
B A E 5 R R
REERE TERER
BT EBE - o AEH
ﬁf@%ﬂﬁﬁ%$ﬁ~ Ficy
MESHERRE  LE
BB %%@éiﬁﬁiAEM
184 BT - EHEZE T - —F XA
=tE AEETRBELERE
1471318 » BEKFEEE - B
TEARERRR -
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Business Review and Prospects %7 EEE R &2

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KBS (4F)

Business Overview (continued) EBRME(E)

The Group’s major financing arrangements in the first —Z - — 4 F¥ 4  KEETE
half of 2022 are summarised in the table below: BMETHRWMEWNT ¢

Issue date
BITHH

Financing arrangements and
uses of proceeds
MERHRBEEES RS

Issue size (RMB)
BITREBEARE)

June 2022
—E-FNA

China Everbright Water Limited
(“Everbright Water”), the Company’s listed
subsidiary, issued the first tranche of
perpetual medium-term notes (“MTN”) in
the national inter-bank bond market for the
replacement of the due debts of Everbright
Water and its subsidiaries.

RATE EHME AR R ERARKBERA
Al (MR RKB DR ZBRITEES T 5%
TE—HKETHFEE - AREBRE AKX
B RENE AR HER o

700 million
v

May 2022
—E-_FFA

China Everbright Greentech Limited
(“Everbright Greentech”), the Company’s
listed subsidiary, issued the first tranche of
perpetual MTN in the national inter-bank
bond market for the repayment of interest-
bearing debts of Everbright Greentech and
its subsidiaries.

AR EHMBARRE R KRG ERRE
RAR([RAREZERR])NERHBITHEE
HFMiHETE - BKETHARE - ARE
BAEREERRLEME QAN BER -

700 million
=

April 2022
—E-_FA

The Company issued the 2022 perpetual
MTN (series 1) in the national inter-bank
bond market for the repayment of the
Group’s interest-bearing debts.
RAARIREBERITHEEGESMSBET S
—EEE-HKETHER  AREER
SENEBER -

1.5 billion
15187T
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)

Issue date
BEITHH

Financing arrangements and
uses of proceeds
MELHRBEEET RS

REXE T

11

Issue size (RMB)
BITHRE(A LK)

April 2022
T FA

Everbright Greentech issued the 2022
green MTN (series 1) (bond connect) in
the national inter-bank bond market for
the repayment of interest-bearing debts of
Everbright Greentech and its subsidiaries,
replenishment of their working capital and/
or investment and construction of their
environmental protection projects and
other business development purposes.
HAREEREREBRITEARS ST
T _FEFE BT HER(ES
) ARNEEXRGZERREREWE AR
WA BER MrEEES R SIEERM
ERIRRAER MEMEBERBE

1.2 billion
12{87T

April 2022
T FA

Everbright Water issued the third tranche
of MTN in the national inter-bank bond
market for the replenishment of working
capital of Everbright Water’s subsidiaries.

KARKBRE2EBTRIBSTHETE=
HR R - BRETEMNE R A8 EE
B e

1 billion
10187T

January 2022
—E-——&F—AHA

Everbright Water issued the second
tranche of super & short-term commercial
papers in the national inter-bank bond
market for the replenishment of working
capital of Everbright Water’s subsidiaries.
KAKBRE2EBITRIBESRTHEITEZ
HBEPRE S - ARERENE QAR
HEES -

1 billion
10187T




1 2 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

The Group remains dedicated to creating value
for and sharing development and operation
returns with the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”). To reward the Shareholders for their
support, the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Director(s)”) of the Company has declared to pay an
interim dividend of HK15.0 cents per share for the
six months ended 30 June 2022 to the Shareholders
(2021: HK19.0 cents per share).

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had a business
presence in over 210 locations across 25 provinces,
municipalities, autonomous regions and special
administrative region in China, with overseas
business markets in Germany, Poland, Vietnam
and Mauritius. The Group secured a total of 540
environmental protection projects, with an aggregate
investment of approximately RMB154.077 billion;
it also undertook 44 environmental remediation
services, 3 waste sorting services, 26 engineering,
procurement and construction (“EPC”) projects, 5
energy management contract (“EMC”) projects and
6 operation and management (“O&M”) projects. As
the world’s largest waste-to-energy investor and
operator, the Group had a total of 178 waste-to-
energy projects (including an O&M project) under
its environmental energy and greentech sectors,
with an aggregated designed daily household waste
processing capacity of 151,200 tonnes.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

EKRMEE)
AEBRHEARARQRBE (I
HDAERITEETEBRRSZ
BRESEKRENES - BEER
RY#E AprE=(E=E))eg
(B ) EMRBRRREEHEE
—7——ﬁ5/\ﬁ +E|_|J:/\1IH
ZHERESRI5.0EBWL(ZE

——4F  F%19.081) -

BHE_Z__FA=+H" K
SEEBEHREEEARN25E

%(W) -  BAERMERTHE -
BR2IOEZERET  BINTS
MHBEE - FE - BEMEEX

B B ERENRRIARS40
1 CRIEENOAREA,540.7718
T BAZAAERBEEERS
1lni&“*ﬁﬂm‘¥ 261E L1242
B ([EPCI)HEER 1IAHHWJ¥
ﬁfﬁ!ﬁ((EMcJ)IEﬁtA&Mé%%
EHIEA - $€El¢7‘%ﬁfﬁfyk
MR R EBEREELHE  E R
REER HERERMMELEE
iﬁi&%’**ﬁawm (Z1EZ£5E
BEIEH) REFAEBRAFENR
151,200MF o
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

During the period under review, the Group continued
to consolidate its traditional business areas of
waste-to-energy, water environment management,
hazardous and solid waste treatment and solar
energy. It also actively continued the expansion
of synergistic businesses, in the face of a more
competitive external market environment. In the
meantime, the Group stepped up efforts to promote
the development of asset-light businesses, such as
waste sorting, resource recycling and energy-saving
lighting. In addition, the Group established adaptive
workforces to actively explore and follow up high-
quality business opportunities in Hong Kong. In the
first half of 2022, the Group signed 14 new projects,
commanding a total investment of approximately
RMB1.757 billion. It also undertook 2 environmental
remediation services, 1 waste sorting service, 4 EPC
projects and 2 O&M projects, with an aggregate
contract value of approximately RMB161 million.
In addition, the Group, during the period under
review, won the bidding for multiple environmental
protection projects, covering businesses such as
waste-to-energy, waste water treatment, end-of-life
tyre integrated utilisation, in Hubei, Hunan, Guangxi,
Anhui, Yunnan and other provinces.

13
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14 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Business Review and Prospects 2 EfEHEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

The major designed treatment and supply capacities
of the new projects secured in the first half of 2022
are summarised as below:

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

BB (E)
TECCF FHEFHEEERG
BRIENEEREREMT

Project Category Designed Treatment/Supply Capacity
1EH 5 BETERIR, G
Household waste 900 tonnes/day
SRS 9001E B
Food waste 990 tonnes/day
BRI 990mE, A
Hazardous and 1,500 tonnes/year
Solid waste 1,500M,4E
1& [E BE
Water treatment* 101,500 m?%/day
KRR 101,500 75k /A
* Including various types of water business, such as water supply, waste water treatment and reusable
water.

- BEHK  FKEE - FKEAEKBEEBEL
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

In terms of project construction, during the period
under review, the Group continued to adhere to the
7 principles of “Productivity, Efficiency, Quality, Cost-
Effectiveness, Legitimacy, Safety and Integrity”. It
strictly complied with the requirements of ongoing
pandemic prevention and control measures in
various regions, and gave full play to the dynamic
management of the construction progress of each
project in relation to areas of safety, quality, cost and
compliance, minimising negative effect brought by
the Pandemic and ensuring the orderly progress of
various project construction works. In the first half
of 2022, 20 projects completed construction and
commenced operation, and 3 projects completed
construction. 2 environmental remediation services
and 3 EPC projects were completed and delivered.
There were also 27 projects (including EPC projects)
commenced construction and 5 services of different
types began execution.

In terms of operations management, during the
period under review, the Group, with a focus on
“Cost Reduction and Efficiency Enhancement” and
“Value Creation”, continued to uphold stringent
project operations management standards. On the
basis of ensuring stable operation and compliance
with relevant emission standards, the Group
developed its safety and environmental management
system. It also proactively adopted digitalisation and
intelligent management methods to further reduce
operation costs, increase operation efficiency, and
continuously boost revenue from operation services.
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1 6 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Business Review and Prospects %7 EEE R &2

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

With the increasing awareness on “Carbon
Reduction” worldwide and the full implementation
of the national “Dual Carbons” goal, the Group
has made steady progress in exploring “Reduction
of Pollution and Carbon Emissions” and “Pursuit
of Synergy and Efficiency”, with guidance of the
“Dual Carbons” goal. The Group’s equipment
manufacturing sector further optimised the rooftop
solar energy facilities of its plants to enhance solar
energy generation capacity to supplement the
electricity demand of the plants. The waste-to-energy
projects under the environmental energy sector
carried out a “low-carbon steam” pilot programme,
which supplies industrial steam to enterprises in
industrial parks where the projects are located,
effectively increasing the source of green energy in
the parks. The environmental water sector further
promoted its “in-plant solar energy” pilot programme
to multiple projects, which further increased the
portion of green energy consumed against the overall
energy consumption at the projects; additionally,
the sector tapped waste water recycling potential
from its projects to increase source of green energy.
The envirotech sector further optimised the Group’s
carbon calculation model and completed calibration
of the Group’s contribution of 4.98 million tonnes
of greenhouse gas emission reduction in 2021;
carried out technology research and development
(“R&D”) relating to carbon capture, and completed
the development of 100kg-level solid amine carbon
dioxide (CO,) capture materials; actively promoted
the pilot development of carbon assets for the
Group’s projects; promoted the development of a
carbon asset management information platform and
developed modules for carbon emission monitoring,
data analysis and emission reduction project
management and other functions, for waste-to-
energy projects.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

EBBE(E)

BE = [ Wi R BE | £ 2 Bk 80 B R &
MEEE - BXRIMER]IBEREA
i - AEEUEHR]BIZAE
gl RS FERR ] 1R G ]
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BE ) o IRIRKFEIRIRME — F 15[ R
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

Having been deeply engaged in the environmental
field for nearly two decades, the Group is well aware
that high-quality environmental management and
environmental disclosure are not only about the
basic rights and well-being of the people, but also
the responsibility of corporate citizens. During the
period under review, under requirements for the on-
going pandemic prevention and control, the Group
leveraged its environmental protection projects of
all types to launch public opening activities, which
received a total of approximately 15,000 visits from
domestic and overseas visitors across all sectors
in the first half of 2022. The Group’s projects also
actively launched online public opening activities to
further expand the scope of promotion of concepts
relating to environmental protection, environmental
science popularisation and sustainable development.
At the project level, the Group’s Zhangjiakou Waste-
to-energy Project in Hebei Province, as a safeguard
project of the Olympic Winter Games Beijing 2022
(“Winter Olympics”), ensured the harmless treatment
of all household waste in key control areas during
the Winter Olympics. This project is also regarded
as a key heart-winning project locally which properly
transfers, transports and processes household
waste from 6 local districts and 1 county, taking
on multiple important tasks, such as safeguarding
the Winter Olympics, spreading the idea of a green
Olympics, and protecting the living environment of
local residents.
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

The Group adheres to the concept of environmental
protection and social responsibility, and actively
promotes energy conservation and the reduction
of carbon emissions and pollution, to drive the
simultaneous improvement of social, economic
and environmental benefits. The Group’s major
environmental contributions during the period under
review are summarised as below:

Treatment Capacity

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

EBME(E)
AEERTRERER L G EMT
BR o BSHEBENREREE - RS
Fefx - BEmESTE  QEMR
B me R SR - DEHA -
AEETEREEMBENOT :

Environmental Contribution
RIZER

Generating green electricity of
12,266,122,000 kWh. This output
could support the annual electricity
consumption needs of 10,222,000
households, equivalent to saving
4,906,000 tonnes of standard coal,
while reducing CO, emissions by
13,787,000 tonnes.

4 @ E 1712,266,122,000 F K
W A] #£10,222,000 {8 K fE — F {&
A - 1B R ETRRE4,906,000W +
DSk HixHEp13,787,0000

BERE
Household waste processed 23,892,000 tonnes
EENRRESE 23,892,000/
Hazardous and solid waste 223,000 tonnes
processed 223,000M8
BEEREE
Agricultural and forestry 4,266,000 tonnes
waste processed 4,266,000
ENEEYRES
Waste water treated 840,525,000 m?
KIS 840,525,00037 /5 K
Waste-to-energy plants’ 5,168,000 m?
leachate treated 5,168,000 /5 K

SREERZRREEE

Reducing Chemical Oxygen Demand
(“COD") discharge of 405,000
tonnes.
mAiBF@a=([CODI) R
405,000 °
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

Since the Group’s first environmental protection
project commenced operation in 2005, its aggregate
major environmental contributions are summarised as

below:

Aggregate Treatment

19

EBMEE)
BE-ZTRFAKEEERREA
BERENR  NEBRFHNEE
REEEB20T :

Aggregate Environmental
Contribution
ZETRFEER

Capacity X

2R ERE
Household waste processed 192,849,000 tonnes
EENIRRIESE 192,849,000M8
Hazardous and solid waste 1,563,000 tonnes
processed 1,568,000MF
BEERES

Agricultural and forestry 30,869,000 tonnes

Generating green electricity of
92,990,151,000kWh. This output
could support the annual electricity
consumption needs of 77,492,000
households, equivalent to saving
37,196,000 tonnes of standard coal,
while reducing CO, emissions by

waste processed 30,869,0000 93,142,000 tonnes.
%W%w%gg R4 @ E 7792,990,151,000 F &
B o A 77,492,000 8 K fE — &
A RERE X1 37,196,00018
B =&AL BRHERR93,142,00008
Waste water treated 13,802,827,000 m® Reducing COD discharge of
AKERES 13,802,827,00037 /5 K &%Z%Mmm&
A 7
Waste-to-energy plants’ 41,040,000 m® 2 CODH IS, 367,0000%
leachate treated 41,040,000 /5 K

NRERERS R REEE
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)

Business Overview (continued)

During the period under review, the Group continued
to actively support and participate in various
philanthropic activities relating to environmental
protection education, energy conservation and
carbon reduction, ecological conservation and
community care. Among which, the Group was
invited to participate in China’s host event “5th
June Environment Day” in conjunction with the
“World Environment Day”, and the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) was appointed the
2022 Ecological Environmental Guest Observer
by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of
the PRC (“MEE”). In the meantime, the Group’s
projects launched various unique thematic activities
around environmental protection themed festivals,
such as “World Environment Day”, “World Water
Day” and “China Water Week”, encouraging
surrounding communities to pay attention to
sustainable development issues, such as ecological
environmental protection, energy conservation and
consumption reduction, promoting the integration
of projects with the local communities, and
actively helping to promote the implementation of
the country’s “Dual Carbons” goal among in the
grassroot communities. In addition, during the period
when Hong Kong was severely hit by the Pandemic,
internally, the Group made efforts to prevent and fight
against the pandemic to ensure the health and safety
of employees in the city; and externally, it proactively
organised volunteer activities to donate supplies to
the local communities to help residents overcome the
difficulties.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

B LS (1)
EBBE(E)

CIEAR  NEBEEER LS
I@Eﬁixiﬁiﬁﬁﬁ - A RE R
ix - £RERE  HEBEESH @A
E’J?Z\%ﬂﬁﬁxﬁgﬂ Hep AEH
Eg2HEIHMRIREE PR E
tﬁ/é@”/\ﬂia =R NN jz@
HEBRFRIREBETAE S
::Egiﬁhb%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ°
HpEE - ASEETZEE
BEE&ZIMRAERERD] - [HAK

JTHEKE | ERFEED
H FARTHEXZK  FAEREE
MEEEE  THEELRET
HRRIRIBIRE « R ES I
BERRZE - (REEE EE AL
R HEEHEE - BB BRI &
ﬁRJEﬁE%?\iIEE’Uﬁ@%E 0
AN ERBEX BB TR
EEERE - NEBE AN
BIMETE  REEBETHE
&% HNERARE TE
B mAa@RBELEYE
AR R R I EERE -
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB SEIE (4F)
Business Overview (continued) %i%mﬁ(ﬁ/

In 2022, the Group received a number of honours :
in recognition of its efforts and positive momentum
in various aspects, including business operation,
technology R&D, sustainable development and social

== AEEEEHE
R - AR -
RES I EMARGAGE

BHERRA - B %%IE#*

responsibility. The major awards and recognition are % ° IE%%IE&%%T%EQDT

summarised as below:

Category Award/Recognition
el He1E R

Awarding
Organisation(s)

BEBE

Business operation Blue Ocean Award

RGREE EEBFR

Everbright Water was shortlisted in
“Top Ten Influential Enterprises in
China’s Water Industry” (for the fifth
consecutive year)

KRR NE[RBEKEFRZES
¥ IBE(EBERF)

The Group’s Everbright Environmental
Technical Equipment (Changzhou)
Limited* (“Changzhou Equipment
Company”) was shortlisted in the first
batch of High-Quality Development
Leader in the Advanced Service
Sector of Jiangsu Province

$‘§IB‘ET%KE&%&?TT%%(%J‘I‘\)7(5‘1

RANTHMERERT ) NETEHE
%Tﬁté TRRRGESESHRERE
RS

Asian Development
Bank
TMNFEERTT

E20 Environmental
Platform
E20IR%EF &

Jiangsu Development &
Reform Commission

T ERE R
KEZB®

*

For identification purpose only * EBHRHFIAE
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FEERRE (RE)BRDE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KBS (4F)
Business Overview (continued) EBBEE)
Awarding
Category Award/Recognition Organisation(s)
5] I8, BB MR

Technology R&D
BTRR

Everbright-Qingdao University of
Technology Research Institute of
Environmental Technology received
CNAS certificates, being considered
a laboratory recognised by the
country

RARESEIRE MM EERE
CNASRE  BEBERAANERE
1751

The research project of “Innovation
and Application of Key Technologies
for Synergy in Resource Recovery
of Autotrophic Desulfurisation and
Carbon Reduction of Industrial Waste
Water”, in which Everbright Water
(Shenzhen) Limited* participated as a
key participant, received the first prize
of the 2021 Environmental Protection
Science and Technology Award

FARKEORIBRABEREE T
Bz —280] TEEKEERRRE
Tk 8 IR [2] W 175 ) 338 205 28§ 5% i 1) 77
FEF |RESLE_T - —FERBRE
RIE5 g 82— F 42

Everbright Water Technology
Development (Nanjing) Limited*
received the first prize of the 2021
Science and Technology Award of
Jiangsu Province

KRKBRZER(BR) BRA A
KR -T — —FEITEHE R BRI
—E®

China National
Accreditation Service
for Conformity
Assessment (CNAS)

REAFE
BXRIZEE
(CNAS)

Environmental
Protection Science
and Technology
Awards Committee

R RERI E2 RN
REZES

People’s
Government of
Jiangsu Province

TEE ARBUFT

* For identification purpose only

Y EMEE
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB SEIE (4F)
Business Overview (continued) EBHE &)
Awarding
Category Award/Recognition Organisation(s)
Ll $e18 R RIS
Sustainable Included in the Sustainability Yearbook S&P Global
development (the fifth time) [
AREERE BRI HBERFE)NERR)
Best in Reporting Awards The BDO ESG Awards
RIEESGHRE A2 BDOIRHE - 18 K
E/Dﬁhﬁ
Everbright Greentech received “ESG The BDO ESG Awards
Report of the Year”, “Best in ESG  BDO&IE - & K&
Awards” and “Best in Reporting BEIRAN
Awards” under the Small Market
Capitalisation category of the main
board
KRG ERREFERNDMEARNTH
ESGHFE K% - ESGREXRIH KNI
K ERIEESGH S A4
Social Social Responsibility Brand of the Year China Charity
responsibility (the eighth consecutive year) Festival
HEaE FEREmMRGEBE/\F) Ll ETN Y]

The Group’s Shandong Zibo Waste
Water Treatment Project was
recognised as “Top Ten Opening-Up
Environmental Protection Facilities in
Shandong Province in 2022

6% B L RS )5 KR IR TH B R Al =
ff:iM%é+&%ﬁ & s 7 U
YA

Zhejiang Quzhou Waste-to-energy
Project of the Group was recognised
as “Top Ten Opening-Up Environmental
Protection Facilities in 2022”

$ElﬁT%J%MHW%$EE%¥
;ﬂ;?——¢+&%ﬁﬂmﬁm
v

Centre for Ecological
and Environmental
Protection Promotion
and Education of
Shandong Province

IR A A RBIRIR R
SEHEF L

The MEE and the
Central Office for
Guiding Cultural and
Ethical Progress

BIZR A REIR IR &

R SR B
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Business Review and Prospects ¥ EfEEREE

OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of Eight Business Sectors

(i

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY

As a core business sector of the Group, with
the largest scale and biggest business portion,
environmental energy covers waste-to-energy,
food and kitchen waste treatment, sludge
treatment and disposal, leachate treatment,
fly ash treatment, methane-to-energy,
construction and decoration waste treatment
and the development of environmental
protection industrial parks, amongst others.
During the period under review, environmental
energy continued to expand the scope of its
industrial chain and consolidate its competitive
advantage and leading position in the waste-
to-energy industry.

As of 30 June 2022, environmental energy had
invested in and held 237 projects, commanding
a total investment of approximately RMB91.020
billion, and undertook 1 O&M project and
5 EPC projects. These projects (including
an O&M project) are designed to have an
annual household waste processing capacity
of 50,972,250 tonnes, which is expected
to generate an annual on-grid electricity
of 17,159,380,763 kWh, an annual food
and kitchen waste processing capacity of
2,673,250 tonnes and an annual sludge
treatment capacity of 394,200 tonnes.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

EBHMEE)
/(K%%WIE@

(i)

i&1%ﬁz/ﬁ
ERAKERTREREAK
EB O Ee RO EBR
bR fﬁf%ﬁ%?ﬁ%f%?@%iﬁf&
BE B REHBNRE
85 REEERE C 2EK
J&ﬁiﬁi MR - BRE
C BREEEN IR NIR
f%@%lﬁfﬁ?é‘ % o [B FE B
W ! fﬁf%ﬁb/ﬁ?%/z;nﬁgi
WHR  FEANIREEIT
ENRFELEEB LA -

BEZ_T__F
B RRERLESE
23718 - BB HARHE
910.201870 : B&EEZE
LIEE1E - EPCERS5ME -
ML RBE(ELTERE
ERE)ABFEEEENR
50,972,250 - AT 48
% £ 17,159,380,763 F K
51 FREZERREHIIR
2,573,250M8 & F 55 32 75 8
394,200MF °

4
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of Eight Business Sectors (continued)

(i

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued)

As of 30 June 2022, environmental energy’s
waste-to-energy projects are summarised as
follows:

EBMEE)
NARFEIR A1 ()
(i) ﬁ%@ﬁ%iﬁ (#)

E_T_FKA

A BRa BN EHEIAA

BRT -

25

+

Designed processing capacity

Project Status Number of projects (tonnes/annum)

THH AR TE B (& (&) AT R ()

In operation* 138 45,625,000

8

Under construction 11 4,088,000

Tri
* including an O&M project
* E1EZTELEER
In terms of market development, in the first MEHEFR  — T - —F
half of 2022, environmental energy actively FHE - RRERIEREY
responded to the industry adjustments and EXSEABRULTISRE
changes in the market environment, focused B BPEFENEEN
on both the existing and potential markets, 5 EEARTSEAES
continuously adjusted its market expansion B - eEEEEME  HH
strategies, improved its industrial chain ¥BNSEEERE - O E
deployment, and carried out the high-quality HA - BIREBREEE7HE
development of the business. During the FIBH  BIEEHARK
period under review, environmental energy 11.50187C - AR B FE1HE
secured 7 new projects for a total investment of wIREEEIRR ; 61E 53
approximately RMB1.150 billion. These include EHREE @ HREFENR
1 waste-to-energy project; 6 waste-to-energy BIE - RIKERIE - EBE R
synergistic projects involving food waste % fE— ok ARE

mEBER

treatment, fly ash treatment, slag treatment,
amongst others, which further strengthened
the Group’s synergistic business development
strategy for waste-to-energy generation to
promote the business synergy and efficiency
in general. The newly secured projects
contributed a designed daily household waste
processing capacity of 500 tonnes and a
designed daily food waste processing capacity
of 990 tonnes.

LB RBESE
2 3 RSB 2K ¢ 348 5
B AHBRIBEER
H500M8 « B RIEZEE

a9 S 085 i B
FER
K<k
P
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of Eight Business Sectors (continued)

(i

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued)

In terms of project construction, during the
period under review, environmental energy had
17 projects that completed construction and
commenced operation, with a total designed
daily household waste processing capacity of
10,650 tonnes and a designed daily food waste
processing capacity of 400 tonnes. 13 projects
commenced construction, with a total designed
daily household waste processing capacity
of 2,050 tonnes, a designed daily food waste
processing capacity of 640 tonnes.

In relation to operations management,
environmental energy continued to explore
potential opportunities to reduce cost and
increase efficiency, while increasing investment
in areas related to intelligent power station.
During the period under review, multiple
intelligent power station related projects,
such as the fieldbus technology, unattended
slag hanging control system, and automated
programming system (APS) solution that could
start or stop relevant equipment with one single
click and other innovations were implemented
and took effect, significantly improving the
efficiency of operations management and
laying a solid foundation for further promotion
of related work. In the first half of 2022, the
average electricity generated per tonne of
waste incinerated at environmental energy’s
waste-to-energy projects was approximately
470 kWh, with an integrated power
consumption ratio of approximately 15%.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

£
NAX
(i)

WMEE)

E VT AN 16D
BIREEIR (&)
TREXRF® - DEHRK -
IRIREEFELAE17EER &K
WiB - BRETHAEABERE
ASERIR10,6500F ¢+ B ERIE
BB A1 400ME ¢ 131818 B
FTER  @R:BEEAEB
BR ¥R A E B 32,0500 - H
BRIEZE BI B} 640M8 o

BEBEEEAH  RBRRERSE
BIEE - BRAIE - R
ABEEMHEFERENEA
NE - BEHR - RIGEE
BT - EmBEABETERES
—REFEEEBELRER
FAPS) F REZEEMAE
BRELEEMR N BE
RAELEEMNE - AHE
TEE—THEEETRY
Eff o —T - —F FHF
RIREE R R EEEIHE F19
TWEAME N REEELNAT0
TER HFEBABEXRY
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of Eight Business Sectors (continued)

(i

ENVIRONMENTAL ENERGY (continued)
During the period under review,
environmental energy contributed an
EBITDA of HK$4,906,602,000, a decline
of 11% as compared with the first half of
2021. Environmental energy contributed
a net profit attributable to the Group of
HK$2,743,173,000, a decline of 17% as
compared with the first half of 2021. The
decrease in profit was mainly attributable to
the number of construction projects that was
affected by the market during the period, which
resulted in the decline in revenue and profit
from construction services, and the influence of
the one-off impairment provision of goodwill.

Major operating data relating to environmental
energy during the first half of 2022 are
summarised in the table below:

27
RS (1)
EBBEE)
VAVNE 28 A = e
(i) IRIREEIR(E)
EEEEEA - IRIREER B BB

7‘HJ CHTE - E R
A ET‘J/%TE%% 906,602,000
T BT Lo
TB11% - RIRERE
AEBEEFAFEE
2,743,173,0007C * M- &

T FE¥FTE1I7T% - &
FME A EERBRNERIEER
%(gxmi%?;%% BEEE
HEM& &”ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂr

IR—RMEEEREREY
%Fﬁ@l
TE-F F¥F o RRRE

BerXEBLHBBHEN
T

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 Change
BZ =S
—E-CF —E-—F
~A=TH ~A=Z1H
EREA A A BAEH
Waste processing AR EIEE (W)
volume (tonnes) 22,175,000 18,690,000 19%
Food and kitchen waste 2 Eigh 5t
processing volume RYEE (1)
(tonnes) 446,000 323,000 38%
On-grid electricity HREEKRE)
(MWh) 7,544,469 6,227,976 21%
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of Eight Business Sectors (continued)

(i)

GREENTECH

As of 30 June 2022, the Group held a 69.7%
stake in Everbright Greentech, which is listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Everbright Greentech focuses on integrated
biomass utilisation, hazardous and solid
waste treatment, environmental remediation,
solar energy, wind power, amongst others. It
positions itself as a leading intelligent energy
supplier dedicated to “Carbon Neutrality”, as
well as a prominent industrial hazardous waste
treatment investor and operator in China.

As of 30 June 2022, Everbright Greentech
had invested in and held 141 projects, with a
total investment of approximately RMB33.120
billion. These projects are designed to have
an annual biomass raw material processing
capacity of 8,089,800 tonnes, an annual
household waste processing capacity of
4,215,750 tonnes, and an annual hazardous
and solid waste processing capacity of
2,943,376 tonnes. These projects are expected
to generate 6,992,190,013 kWh of on-grid
electricity and 5,223,263 tonnes of steam
supply per annum.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

KBS (4F)

EBWEE)

S\ E B IR VBB ()

(i) #HERR
R-E-_—_F<B=+8H"
REBERFBEXAREEBRR
69.7% M I o K REBIR
REEBAEBEXSMBRA

AI([BZA]) ERETA
A EREKBEEAVELR
AFA - CEERE  RE
1B1E - XRES - BHEE
FEY - EAATEELN
[HKFR R )5 5 BE R £ P 7
TXBEREREELR -

i_y_:
%kﬁ@
EE1M“
R #331. 201“ '
@%ﬁ%ﬁi%%%ﬁﬂ
8,089,800MA + 4 f7 1 4 )&
B 4,215,750 « FRE
& [E BB 2,943,376 + FE 5t
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Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of Eight Business Sectors (continued)

(i)

GREENTECH (continued)

As of 30 June 2022, Everbright Greentech’s
hazardous and solid waste treatment projects
are summarised as follows:

29

EBMEE)
NARBERI LI ()

(i

REIRIR(E)
HE-_T_—_F A=+
B ARG ERREERERE
BHEEBRWOT

Designed processing capacity

Project status Number of projects (tonnes/annum)
THH R TE A (1) RETRBHE(NE,F)
In operation 32 1,078,400
®iE
Under construction 7 792,500
i

In terms of market development, in the first
half of 2022, Everbright Greentech proactively
“stabilised its major businesses” by maintaining
its market position in traditional business
areas such as hazardous and solid waste
treatment and solar energy, while seeking
to “promote transformation” by increasing
investment in technical research and business
development in areas like resource utilisation
of waste tyres and bulk solid waste. During
the period under review, Everbright Greentech
secured 4 new projects, which commanded
a total investment of approximately RMB229
million. It also undertook 2 environmental
remediation services, with a total contract
value of approximately RMB77.85 million. The
new projects are designed to have an annual
hazardous and solid waste processing capacity
of 1,600 tonnes, household waste processing
capacity of 146,000 tonnes, and solar power
installed capacity of 3.20 megawatt (“MW”).

MBHEFE > - -F
E¥EF - ARG ERRER
(B %] EEENEEERE
BE - MARBESERER
BEETISHAL ; B
RIMEER | BHEEER
JREREFE -  RREEE
TRAE T A 55 <8 350 hn R B9l
TERANMEBHEANE - B
FEHAR - AR EBIRRLE
S4@FEE @ BREHA
R¥22018 7T ¢+ AE2MER
BIEERY - RISERERE
HANRUET 7858 IT o #1%
RETRIE BT R E B R
1,500MF - 4 FF 32 A JE By i)
146,000W8 - (K3 FE &
B[E3.20)KE °
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued)
Business Overview (continued)
Business Review of Eight Business Sectors (continued)

(i)

GREENTECH (continued)

With respect to project construction, during
the period under review, Everbright Greentech
had 2 projects that had completed construction
and commenced operation, in addition to 2
projects that had completed construction,
contributing a designed annual hazardous
and solid waste processing capacity of
180,000 tonnes and a designed solar power
installed capacity of 1.15 MW. 2 environmental
remediation services were completed and
delivered in the first half of 2022. Besides,
7 projects commenced construction, with a
designed annual household waste processing
capacity of 365,000 tonnes, and a designed
solar energy power installed capacity of
6.10 MW. 3 environmental remediation services
started their respective remediation work in
succession.

During the period under review, the Group’s
greentech sector contributed an EBITDA of
HK$1,334,647,000, a decrease of 18% as
compared with the first half of 2021. Everbright
Greentech contributed a net profit attributable
to the Group of HK$296,369,000, a decrease
of 41% as compared with the first half of 2021.
The profit decrease primarily due to the impact
of the pandemic in China, which resulted in the
significant increase in the costs of biomass raw
materials, the weak demand for hazardous and
solid waste and the continuous decrease in unit
prices for hazardous and solid waste treatment.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

EBHMEE)
NARBERA LI ()

(i

LR BIRIR ()

TRRERSE  DIEEA -
HREERREF2MEIER
ERIRE - 2{EE B 2K 5T
T XAHEEAEFEERE
£ 180,000MF « Y {R 3 E
HWRE1A5IKE : 2@RE
BERBR-_Z-_—_F ¥
FEMBEETREILN - It
Gh 7TETEERIER @ %
AREAERBEAENR
365,000 -+ Y 1K 3 & i
BE6.10KE : 3EREE
ERAGEERIGIRMEBET

e

EEHR - AEESZERR
IRBEBIBRAE ~ BE -
rEREHENAEF B
1,334,647,000C ' - &
T FF¥EFTE18% °
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(ii) GREENTECH (continued) (if) LREOIRIR ()

Major operating data relating to greentech

—7::¢i¥¢ B EIR

during the first half of 2022 are summarised in RZEEELERBEN
the table below: T~
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 Change
BZ =Y
—EB-CE —E-—F
~A=TH ~A=Z1H
EREA EAEA B
Waste processing AR EIEE (W)
volume (tonnes) 1,717,000 1,664,000 3%
Biomass raw material  £#EREMHEEE
processing volume (1)
(tonnes) 4,266,000 3,752,000 14%
Hazardous and solid ~ EEEEE S ()
waste processing
volume (tonnes) 223,000 115,000 94%
Steam supply volume  Z {H fE 2 (1)
(tonnes) 1,172,000 1,059,000 11%
On-grid electricity T2 (KEE)
(MWh) 3,133,233 3,039,347 3%
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(i)

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER

As of 30 June 2022, the Group held a 72.87%
stake in Everbright Water, which is listed on
the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited and the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. As a leading water
environment management service provider in
China, Everbright Water has developed a fully-
fledged business coverage, which includes
raw water protection, water supply, municipal
waste water treatment, industrial waste
water treatment, reusable water, river-basin
ecological restoration, and sludge treatment
and disposal. It has also formed a full industry
chain in the water business, including project
investment, planning and design, technology
R&D and related services, engineering and
construction, operations management and
integrated diagnosis.

As of 30 June 2022, Everbright Water had
invested in and held 153 projects, commanding
a total investment of approximately RMB28.654
billion. It also secured 4 EPC projects and
5 O&M projects. These projects (including
the O&M projects) are designed to have an
annual waste water treatment capacity of
2,201,497,500 m®, annual reusable water
supply capacity of 102,419,000 m?, and annual
water supply capacity of 310,250,000 m?.
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(i)

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER (continued)
As of 30 June 2022, Everbright Water’s water
projects are summarised as follows:

33

EBHMEE)

NAE RS o] (45)

(i) IBRKTE(E)
BE-_ET-_-—®#XA=+
B - RAKBEEKBFEEB

BRWT
Designed water treatment

Project status Number of projects capacity (m%annum)
FEARMAE TE B @2 (1E) RETREAE (AR F)
In operation* 132 2,106,671,000
RiE
Under construction 13 328,500,000
i

* including O&M projects

* EERELTHEA

In terms of market development, in the first
half of 2022, Everbright Water continued to
concentrate on its major business areas,
leveraging its existing business strengths,
emphasising its service capability, and
bolstering its asset-light business deployment.
Moreover, Everbright Water explored the
“water-related” business to expand its
development vision. During the period under
review, Everbright Water secured 2 projects,
with a total investment of approximately
RMB361 million, and also undertook 2 O&M
projects. The new projects (including the O&M
projects) are designed to have a daily waste
water treatment capacity of 70,000 m?, daily
reusable water supply of 30,000 m?, and daily
leachate treatment capacity of 1,500 m®.

mMBHEF®E —E==F
E¥EF R ARKBEBREE
TE O URUZBBREEER
B ARG HER
MR EEERHRS 2@
BRIZKIER  #—FH
REKDR - BIEER - X
KKFBES2EIEBE @ B%
BEHARE361ETT A
CEEFELIEE - ;X
ARE(EETEZEEBRR
®) A& HEIE57K70,00032
J72K ~ BfEA/K30,00037 57
K BEEIEZIER1T,5003
Fok o
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(i)

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER (continued)

In terms of project construction, during the
period under review, Everbright Water had
1 project that completed construction and
commenced operation, with a total designed
daily water treatment capacity of 40,000 m?;
3 projects commenced construction, with a
total designed daily water treatment capacity of
20,000 ma.

In terms of operations management, during
the period under review, Everbright Water
actively followed China’s “Dual Carbons”
strategic goal. It exploited the potential of its
existing businesses and enhanced operational
efficiency. Since the launch of the “in-plant
solar power” pilot programme in 2021, 6 sets of
solar power generation facilities were installed
at multiple projects with an additional installed
capacity of 14 MW, which supplemented
electricity needs of the project areas. In the first
half of 2022, a total of 3 waste water treatment
plants of Everbright Water received regulatory
approval for tariff hikes, ranging between 3%
and 36%.

During the period under review, the Group’s
environmental water sector contributed
an EBITDA of HK$1,067,376,000, a 2%
decrease compared with the first half of 2021.
Environmental water contributed a net profit
attributable to the Group of HK$379,386,000.

REEARRE (RE)ERAT

EBHMEE)
NARBERA 1 ()

(i)

IRIRKHS (48)
TREXRAF® @ DEHRK -
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TR RATHKEERE
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OPERATING RESULTS (continued) KRB SEIE (4F)
Business Overview (continued) EBWME(Z)
Business Review of Eight Business Sectors (continued) /1A 275k 18 0] 5 (42 )
(i)  ENVIRONMENTAL WATER (continued) (i) BRKIE (&)
Major operating data relating to environmental T F F¥FIRRKE
water during 2022 are summarised in the table ZEEEBLERBEMOT :
below:
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended Percentage
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 Change
BZ Hz

—E-CF —E-—F
AA=1H ~A=1H

IER{EA AR BALE
Waste water treatment  J5/KEEE
volume ('000 m?) (FiuFxX) 840,525 803,357 5%
(v)  EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING (iv) EHRE

As China’s backbone environmental protection TERP BB BIRREEH
equipment R&D and manufacturing provider, BLER - AEERERER
the Group’s equipment manufacturing sector BEABNEBELRFAETE
leverages Changzhou Equipment Company Ta - BREEESLIE
as the main platform to actively establish a BHEEENTERSER &
new development paradigm that integrates RITEIT]RITR - FET
traditional and new businesses. The sector FEELMAL o

also explored the development of zero-carbon
plants, which further solidified its industry-
leading position.
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(iv)

EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING (continued)

In terms of market expansion, during the period
under review, equipment manufacturing signed
9 external sales contracts and sold 8 sets of
equipment to external markets, including 5
sets of grate furnaces and 3 sets of leachate
treatment systems. It secured contracts
relating to the external sale of complete sets of
equipment, which amounted to a total contract
value of RMB154 million. In the consumer
market, positive progress was made on the
sales of the sector’s water purifier products.

In terms of equipment supply and services,
during the period under review, equipment
manufacturing commenced 11 service items,
spanning 10 provinces, municipalities and
autonomous regions in China. It provided 11
sets of grate furnaces to projects of the Group
and external customers, which have a designed
daily waste processing capacity of 5,300
tonnes in total. In addition, it sold 54 sets of
equipment, covering grate furnace systems and
leachate treatment systems.

In terms of after-sales services, during the
period under review, equipment manufacturing
signed 46 contracts in relation to external after-
sales services, worth a total contract value of
approximately RMB21.21 million. Throughout
the first half of 2022, equipment manufacturing
provided 115 after-sales service projects,
including 81 internal ones and 34 external
ones.
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(iv)

EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURING (continued)
During the period under review, equipment
manufacturing continued to promote
technology R&D and carried out a number
of research projects, covering equipment,
technologies and processes. The domestic
selective catalytic reduction (SCR) technology
was successfully applied to the Group’s
environmental protection projects in Zhejiang
Province with satisfactory results. The Group
completed installation of the main equipment
of the medical waste incineration technology in
its environmental protection projects in Sichuan
Province. The higher heating value water-
cooled grate furnace system was successfully
implemented in the Group’s environmental
protection projects in Anhui, Jiangsu and
Sichuan Provinces, with installation and trial run
of the equipment being gradually carried out.
The R&D work of a set of equipment on solid
waste treatment (processing capacity below
200 tonnes/day) was carried out in an orderly
manner.

With respect to development of zero-carbon
plants, equipment manufacturing conducted
systematic carbon emission calculation,
statistics and evaluation for the Changzhou
Equipment Company during the period under
review, and further optimised the layout of the
solar energy facilities that had already been
built on the roof of its plants to enhance energy
conservation and emission reduction efficiency.
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v)

ECO-RECYCLING

The Group’s eco-recycling sector closely
follows the “Five Points in One Line” process
model for waste sorting, with a focus on 3
main business areas, namely waste sorting
and zero-waste cities, environmental sanitation
integration, and resource recycling. Striving
to expand markets, the sector has positioned
itself as a first-class investor and operator in
waste sorting and resource recycling across
China.

During the period under review, eco-recycling
undertook every effort to manage the impact
of the Pandemic while continuing to boost its
effort in market expansion with a focus on the
3 main business areas. The Group secured
Jiangsu Yancheng Renewable Resources
Project and undertook public restroom
operation and maintenance service for the
Miaogang of Qidu Town in the Wujiang District
of Suzhou City, laying a solid foundation
for the subsequent implementation of the
environmental sanitation integration in Qidu
town. In addition, it undertook the food and
kitchen waste collection and transferring
project in the Huaiyin District of Ji’'nan City,
Shandong Province, helping to achieve synergy
at the back end with the Group’s kitchen
waste treatment project in Ji'nan, which is
of big significance for the Group to carry out
the collection and transferring of food waste
and household waste in the future in Ji'nan.
In addition, during the period under review,
eco-recycling closely followed up on business
opportunities involving waste sorting and
environmental sanitation integration in Anhui,
Jiangsu, Hubei, Guizhou, Yunnan and other
provinces.
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(vi)

GREENERGY

The Group’s greenergy sector adheres to the
development philosophy of “Green, Healthy
and Intelligent” lighting, with its business
covering R&D, design, manufacturing and sales
of energy-saving healthy lighting products,
as well as software and hardware products
relating to the development of smart cities that
are based on greenergy’s intelligent light poles.
Greenergy aims to provide lighting services
for urban streets, tourism sites and education
purposes, as well as for the development of
intelligent industrial parks and smart cities.
The sector is dedicated to becoming a leading
integrated service provider specialised in
energy-saving lighting and the development of
smart cities in China.

In terms of market expansion, during the period
under review, greenergy signed 3 energy-
saving lighting projects based on an EPC model
in Ji'nan and Linyi Cities, with a contract value
of approximately RMB16.80 million. The sector
also signed 35 contracts for the direct sales of
the Everbright New Sodium Lamps and other
lighting products, with a contract value of
approximately RMB4.55 million.
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(vi)

(vii)

GREENERGY (continued)

In terms of construction work, during the
period under review, 2 EPC projects completed
construction and 3 EPC projects commenced
construction in an orderly manner. In addition,
greenergy Intelligent Industrial Park completed
construction, with the aim to become
greenergy’s national R&D and production base
and a world-leading R&D and production base
of green lighting products. The industrial park
will be committed to innovation to facilitate the
development of the lighting industry.

In terms of product R&D, during the period
under review, greenergy carried out optimisation
and upgrading of management systems
and functions relating to its core products.
The intelligent industrial park management
platform has integrated the “Dual Carbons”
management and other functions and
successfully commenced trial run at Greenergy
Intelligent Industrial Park. The smart light poles
management platform and system were applied
in multiple projects. The smart gateway themes,
single lamp controller, centralised controller
and prefabricated equipment compartment with
independent intellectual property rights began
production and were applied in multiple projects.
More function modules and types of products
were added to the study desktop lamps and
classroom lamps, which were also used by
multiple projects of the Group.

ENVIROTECH

Being the Group’s technology R&D and
innovation engine, the envirotech sector has
been leveraging its “Four-in-One” technological
innovation and R&D layout with platforms in
Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Nanjing and Qingdao
City, to foster and accelerate the Group’s
strategic transformation, structure optimisation
and new business development. The sector
aims to become a global platform dedicated to
green technological innovation and conversion.
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(vii)

ENVIROTECH (continued)

In terms of R&D layout, during the period under
review, envirotech focused on the development
of traditional business, new business and the
future development needs, while promoting
R&D work, with relevant R&D works covering
various technological fields such as energy-
saving and efficiency-enhancing technologies
for waste-to-energy plants, advanced leachate
treatment systems, core technologies relating
to intelligent internet of things, satellite remote
sensing carbon monitoring technologies,
waste plastic pyrolysis technologies, efficient
biomass pyrolysis and gasification technologies
and technologies and equipment for waste
incineration at small scales, which helped to
build up momentum and provide technical
support for the Group’s business development.

With a focus on China’s “Dual Carbons”
strategic goals, during the period under
review, envirotech continued to optimise the
Group’s carbon calculation model; completed
6 pilot carbon monitoring projects by the
MEE; actively promoted the development of
carbon assets for the Group’s environmental
protection projects; and developed a carbon
asset management information platform with
phased results. In addition, envirotech has
established the Frontier Technology Research
Centre to explore the frontier directions related
to clean energy substitution technologies, non-
fossil raw material substitution technologies,
waste high-value technologies, carbon capture
and utilisation technologies and others,
actively promoting the green and low-carbon
transformation of the Group.
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(vii)  ENVIROTECH (continued) (vii) ZxEREI(E)
The Group’s major technology R&D progress T _F H¥F . KEH
and results in the first half of 2022 are FERRFEER KRR
summarised as follows: o
Business area Research Results/Topics
¥T5E IR R
Waste-to-energy o Waste leachate distillation nitrogen removal and
bR EEE ammonia nitrogen resource reduction technology

passed the technology achievement appraisal and
has reached the international advanced level.

o B2 R R 2 B A e R R B IR 153 (R Rk B 11T 3
AR RETE - EBIRR KT o

° The research and optimisation of wet de-
acidification technology has been applied and
demonstrated in the Group’s environmental
protection project in Suzhou City.

. %5 B BE AT AR 75 BB B AR &R B AL O #R N B 3R
RIAEETERARE -

o The application of anaerobic membrane bioreactor
(MBR) for waste leachate treatment has been
demonstrated in the Group’s environmental
protection project in Suzhou City.

o BREMBREZ 32 £y 2 8 R fE AR 78 B A SR B i 70
HFMORRIEBETERATE -

Intelligent control o The intelligent control system for waste-to-energy
B Re il incineration has been gradually applied in more than
30 projects of the Group and promoted to external
projects in collaboration with the equipment
manufacturing sector.
o NIRRT TEES RFEZE L ERNEEI0Z E
THEHEREER - I EEERERES FREEZINED
HH -
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EBMEE)

Business Review of Eight Business Sectors (continued) /1A 275k 148 0] 5 (42 )
ENVIROTECH (continued)

(vii)

Business area

ESES

15

(vii) #HZEREI(E)

Research Results/Topics

R R

Solid waste treatment

[ BE 2

38

The research on fluoroplastic heat exchanger has
been applied and demonstrated in the Group’s
environmental protection project in Suzhou City.
FIERHR AR AT E RNAE B R FMN A IRRIE B
EITRATE -

Biomass utilisation

EME

A

A diversified biomass gasification process with
better economic and technical feasibility has
been developed, which can be used as an
effective supplement to direct-combustion power
generation.

KOBER REMAITIERENZ TEYE R TEK
BARBK  AIEREMREEHNERHER

Environmental
sanitation integration

o /e

IRET—

Ll

The demands and design work of the environmental
sanitation integration platform were completed,
which will provide relevant services to support the
waste separation and sorting centre established by
the eco-recycling sector.

RE BB RMEALERTITIETK  SHE
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(vi) ENVIROTECH (continued) (vii) #HZEREI(E)
As of 30 June 2022, patents that were granted BHe_ZT_-_—_F#XA=+
to the Group are summarised in the table B AEBEESKESHNIG
below: AR
As of
30 June
First half 2022
of 2022 (accumulated)
H=E
—F—_C ~NA=+H
¥ (&5
Granted patents EZEF|(18) 175 1,495
Invention patents BERAE A 18 152
Utility patents HEAEER 132 1,110
Software copyright BFZEEEF
licences 13 197
Appearance patents SNER R 12 36

Major technical essays BERMwmERGE) = 72
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(vili)

ENVIRONMENTAL PLANNING

The Group’s environmental planning sector
leverages the Everbright Ecological and
Environmental Planning and Design Institute
(the “Institute”) as the main platform, focusing
on environmental protection and energy. It
strives to build core technological capabilities,
explore diversified business operations,
enhance technical capabilities, and expand the
business scope and industry chain. The Institute
leverages its strengths to gradually develop
an integrated engineering consultancy service
system, with the aim of becoming a first-class
planning and design institute in China.

In terms of business expansion, during the
period under review, the Institute continued to
actively strive to meet the needs of the Group’s
other business sectors and undertake relevant
services, while further strengthening its ability
for market expansion and deployment. It signed
multiple internal and external service contracts
in the field of consulting and design, EPC
and other fields, with a total contract value of
approximately RMB93 million.

In terms of capacity enhancement, during
the period under review, the Institute was
involved in the uptake and application of
new technologies in various environmental
protection fields, including ultra-low emission
retrofitting technologies, ultra-high pressure
reheat unit design, solid waste resource
recovery technologies and leachate testing
capability. In response to the Group’s project
construction needs, the Institute focused on
design enhancement of the steel structures,
and for the first time, the steel structure design
of the Group’s waste-to-energy project in
Shihezi, Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region,
was launched independently.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

In the second half of 2022, the global economy is
expected to face attacks caused by various factors,
such as the stagflation, resurgence of the Pandemic,
and the emergence of a new round of trade
protectionism, which will exacerbate the challenges
of recovery, continuing the unprecedented changes
in a century. With accelerated changes to the world,
China’s economy is expected to continue releasing
signs of recovery and demonstrating its strong
development resilience, in spite of various pressure.

In terms of the ecology and environment, China has
demonstrated its tenacity and step-by-step approach
in fighting the battle against pollution, promoting the
“Dual Carbons” goal, and facilitating the progress of
green and low-carbon development. In April 2022,
the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China (CPC) and the State Council of the PRC issued
the Opinions on Accelerating the Construction of a
Unified National Market, which specifically mentions
green development and proposes the development
of a unified national energy market. Under the
premise of effectively ensuring energy security
supply, combined with the task of achieving the
carbon emission peak and carbon neutral targets,
the establishment of a national energy market will be
promoted in an orderly manner, and the development
of a nationwide unified ecological and environmental
market will be cultivated. In May 2022, the Ministry
of Finance of the PRC issued the Opinions on Fiscal
Support for Carbon Emission Peak and Carbon
Neutral Work, which calls for strengthening the
coordination of fiscal resources, optimising the
structure of fiscal expenditures, increasing support
for the carbon emission peak and carbon neutral
work, and supporting the development of low-
carbon industries such as green energy and “zero-
waste cities”. Although the environmental protection
industry is under adjustment and facing challenges
such as increasingly saturated traditional markets,
new markets that are yet to develop rapidly,
intensified industry competition and tightened
regulation, it is also engaged in a critical period when
the country promotes the comprehensive green
transformation at economic and social aspects and
the fundamental improvement of the ecology and
environment quality, which requires careful study and
judgment, and expansion of ideas and practical work
in order to seize the development opportunities.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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Interim Report 2022
ZERCEhHRE

BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

As a leader in the fields of ecology and environment,
a dedicated participant in the development of a
circular economy and the sustainable development,
the Group will adhere to its corporate mission of
being “Devoted to Ecology and Environment for
a Beautiful China” and the corporate pursuit of
“Creating better investment value and undertaking
more social responsibility”. With the goal of better
fulfilling demands for better environmental protection
services and products by the country, society
and individuals, the Group will uphold the tone of
“Progress with Stability” for all work, adhere to the
innovation-driven development approach, identify its
target customers and position its market expansion,
solidify and further expand the width, length and
depth of its traditional business areas, promote
concurrent development of asset-light and asset-
heavy businesses, enhance synergy among different
business areas, and continue to optimise its revenue
structure. By doing so, the Group is pursuing a high-
quality and sustainable development path to further
solidify its industry-leading position. The Group
believes that under the strategic guidance and full
support of China Everbright Group and the Board, it
will be able to actively seize the new round of industry
development opportunities driven by the “Dual
Carbons” goal and work together with all staff of the
Group to build consensus, stay confident, work hard
and pragmatically with joint efforts and strive towards
the goal of developing the Group into a world-
renowned ecological and environmental group, while
serving the relevant national strategies with a higher
vision and longer-term perspective.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WA

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2022, the Group’s total assets
amounted to approximately HK$200,011,797,000
with net assets amounting to HK$66,073,606,000.
Net asset value per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company was HK$8.196 per share,
representing a decrease of 3% as compared to
HK$8.429 per share as at the end of 2021. As at
30 June 2022, gearing ratio (calculated by total
liabilities over total assets) of the Group was 67%,
representing a decrease of 1 percentage point as
compared with that of 68% as at the end of 2021.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts a prudent approach on cash and
financial management to ensure proper risk control
and low cost of funds. It finances its operations
primarily with internally generated cash flow and loan
facilities from banks. As at 30 June 2022, the Group
had cash and bank balances of HK$14,712,551,000,
representing a decrease of 6% as compared to
HK$15,604,986,000 at the end of 2021. Most of
the Group’s cash and bank balance, representing
approximately 98%, was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.

BORROWINGS

The Group is dedicated to enhancing the ways
of financing and improving banking facilities to
reserve funding to support the development of the
environmental protection business. As at 30 June
2022, the Group had outstanding interest-bearing
borrowings of HK$99,537,999,000, representing a
similar level as compared to HK$99,125,664,000 as
at the end of 2021. The borrowings included secured
interest-bearing borrowings of HK$46,346,578,000
and unsecured interest-bearing borrowings
of HK$53,191,421,000. The borrowings are
mainly denominated in Renminbi, representing
approximately 65% of the total, and the remainder
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
EURO and Polish zloty. Most of the borrowings are
at floating rates. As at 30 June 2022, the Group had
banking facilities of HK$120,492,496,000, of which
HK$34,569,315,000 have not been utilised. The
banking facilities are of 1 to 18-year terms.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Company’s financial statements are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company. The Group’s
investments made outside Hong Kong (including
mainland China) may incur foreign exchange risks.
The Group’s operations are predominantly based
in mainland China, which makes up over 98% of its
total investments and revenue. The Group’s assets,
borrowings and major transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, and as such, it forms a
natural hedging effect. With this in mind, the Group
also pursues an optimal allocation of borrowings in
different currencies while setting appropriate levels
of borrowing in non-base currencies, and adopting
proper financial instruments to closely manage
foreign exchange risks.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Certain banking facilities and lease liabilities of the
Group were secured by revenue and receivables
in connection with the Group’s service concession
arrangements, bank deposits, mortgages over
property, plants and equipment, right-of-use assets
and the equity interests of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. As at 30 June 2022, the aggregate
net book value of pledged assets and equity
interests in subsidiaries amounted to approximately
HK$103,907,609,000.

COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had purchase
commitments of HK$3,531,206,000 outstanding in
connection with the construction contracts.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2022, the Company granted financial
guarantee to its subsidiaries. The Board considers it
is not probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under the guarantee. The maximum liability
of the Company as at 30 June 2022 for the provision
of the guarantee was HK$647,311,000.

49

SN L B2

RRARIZINERRINEEEGRE
o AEBERERBTBNUIG
B (T B A) 77 & 5 E R
e —HAK  PESANEEZ
TEXBMAEN  HERERK

B EI8% A £ o ANEE K
NEE BREREEXHFUAR
MABBAMN BEAEK -—EARD
ﬁﬁ LﬂAﬁEEx$m%§

CEERHIEAEERR
%ﬁﬁ/\ﬂﬁﬁimﬁlﬂu” ) E.Ii
9|\|:J_L G o

BERM
AEBETROBMELEAERE
M$E@%W%ﬁﬁ%%§wT
ZETWE R EEFKE - RITH
oME - BELRE £
BEERARARETHERAN
RIEVERIER - R —T - —F X
A=+RH EBEEREERMER
AR R R EAROREE
103,907,609,0007T °

%?

n= ZERNA=1+8 K&
@ﬁ@ﬁ M RT 4 2 BREE A HE
AH7EI£3 531,206,0007T ©
gwBaE
R-ZE-—FXA=1+8 &2Q
BE A EAREL M EER -

EEeRE BHERBBAEAT
AA iR E Flt B R A AR R 1E
HR R-TE-—FXA=+
CARRNBELRPBERTZ
x=m BES R AE 647,311,000

FH*’“{D]D]EE



50 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis EEE w5 47

INTERNAL MANAGEMENT

The Group adheres to the management principle
of “People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity
and Systematic Management”, and has built a
comprehensive management structure to maximise
efficiency. The Group’s management holds
Management Decision Committee meeting(s) on
a monthly basis to review current operations and
management, with a view to ensuring the sustainable
development of the Company. The responsibilities
of each functional department and business sector
of the Group are clear with various comprehensive
management systems. Internal control procedures
are sound and have been implemented effectively.
The Company’s Internal Audit Department performs
its internal monitoring functions to ensure that
each functional department and business sector
strictly comply with the relevant internal control
requirements.

The Group is committed to building a comprehensive
risk management culture. It implements the risk
management model of “Integration of Policy,
Procedure and System with Risk-oriented” to
comprehensively strengthen its risk management
and control. During the period under review, the
Group updated the list of risk factors according to the
progress of the implementation of risk management
system, with a view to continuously enhancing
the systematisation and normalisation level of risk
management.
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INTERNAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

During the period under review, the Group continued
to uphold the fundamental principle of “maintaining
safe and stable operations while ensuring
compliance with relevant emission standards” and
strictly complied with the relevant national laws
and regulations. In terms of safety, environment
and occupational health, it proactively carried out
routine inspections. Apart from incorporating “Safe
Production Month” into its operation, the Group paid
close attention to safety management and carried out
inspections for potential safety hazards to ensure all
projects, whether under construction or in operation,
strictly complied with all safety policies. These
steps secured the stable operation of environmental
protection projects including waste-to-energy,
integrated biomass utilisation, waste water treatment
projects, etc, while enhancing economic benefits.
Besides, the Group continued to move forward with
project construction works while accelerating the
finalisation of projects in the preparatory stage. It also
went through due formalities to ensure that all project
construction works were carried out in compliance
with laws and regulations. At the same time, the
Group continued to put more efforts into safety
management of construction projects to ensure
professional and safe construction.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resources are the key strategy of corporate
development which require appropriate personnel to
execute this core strategy. The Group highly values
its human resources management and puts great
emphasis on staff training. We believe that realising
the full potential of our employees is crucial to our
long-term business growth. The Group continued to
improve its human resources through internal training
as well as community, overseas and on-campus
recruitment.

During the period under review, in response to the
Pandemic, training of the Group was adjusted to live
and video training programmes. Training courses in
relation to safety and environmental management,
procurement management, and annual and
quarterly reviewing meetings were held to enhance
management’s and staff’s general competence.

To enhance the management’s general competence
as well as enable them to understand the operation
of different business sectors and regions more
comprehensively, the Group conducted internal
selection and recruitment for management staff in
new business sectors. Besides, through internal
transfer and re-assignment, management of regional
management centres could learn and grow in new
business sectors and regions.

To continue to improve the policy related to
evaluation and integrity, the Group issued the Policy
of Evaluation Method, Anti-Corruption, Anti-Bribery
and Anti-Money Laundering Policy.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had approximately
11,600 employees. Details of the employee benefit
expense for the period under review are set out
in note 4 to consolidated financial statements.
Employees within the Group are remunerated
according to their qualifications, experience, job
nature, performance and with reference to market
conditions. Apart from a discretionary performance
bonus, the Group also provides other benefits such
as medical insurance and a mandatory provident fund
scheme to employees in Hong Kong.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
During the period under review, the Group
continuously implemented relevant work of the
risk management system to effectively control the
principal risks faced by the Group.

Accounts receivable risk: Affected by the macro
economy and regular pandemic prevention, the ability
of governments at all levels to pay has been impaired,
increasing the likelihood of deferring settlement
of national subsidies, waste and waste water
treatment fees, as well as the possibility of increase
in overdue accounts receivable. The Company
strictly follows the Management Method on Accounts
Receivable and analyses the overall status of
accounts receivable on a regular basis. Based on the
analysis, the Company will set receivable recovery
objectives and set up recovery plans to ensure the
reasonableness of credit terms and the effective
operation of recovery mechanism. It reviewed
the recoverability of accounts receivable and
effectively implemented the collection of accounts
receivable. The Company has conducted analysis
on the recovery of accounts receivable regularly
and adopted a flexible credit policy and collection
strategy catering to different customers. Real time
adjustments have also been made to minimise the
possibility of bad debt.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Strategic transformation and market competition
risk: In the process of strategic transformation,
the Group has to effectively allocate its funding,
resources and personnel in response to market
changes, thereby fostering synergetic advantages
between new business and the existing business.
With more central enterprises and local state-owned
enterprises tap into the environmental protection
field, market competition became more intense in
2022. The Group took the initiative and entered
into new business fields, such as environmental
sanitation integration and comprehensive utilization
of resources. While steadily pushing forward the
“Five Points in One Line” process model, the
Group actively enriched its business scope and
optimised its business layout. Leveraging its
technological advantages, the Group propelled
the development of intelligent power plants and
facilitated intelligent transformation of factories. The
organisational structure, which is “headquarters
for project organisation and coordination +
business sector for project development on
its own”, for market expansion has also been
formed. The Group also strived to reinforce its
business development momentum by means of
joint business development via mutual cooperation
and coordination among business sectors. In
addition, the Group strengthened the management
of investment projects in advance and in process,
through which it has enhanced the quality and
efficiency of project review. Comprising full-time
and part-time committee members, the Company’s
Project Advisory Committee carries out evaluation on
investment projects on a regular basis, making every
effort to safeguard the interest of the Company. The
Company also regularly conducts benchmarking,
studies the industry development trends and industry
policies from time to time, and conducts research
on new sectors, new technologies and new status of
competition.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Environmental compliance and safety management
risk: The Production Safety Law and the Regulations
on Automatic Monitoring Data Marking for
Household Waste-to-Energy Plants, implemented
in 2021 and 2020 respectively, have imposed
higher requirements on refinement of operation.
The Group continued to optimize its safety and
environmental management system that focused
on three areas (namely the headquarters, sectors,
and subordinate project companies) and integrated
four levels grading assessment management on
operating projects by dividing into four safety
and environmental grades, i.e. A+, A, Band C. A
series of safety and environmental management
systems, such as the Notice on Establishing a
Sound Safety and Environmental Management
Organization and the Administration Regulations
for Safety and Environmental Incidents, has been
rolled out successively. The Company also published
the Notice on Rectifications of Irregularities in
Operation and Strengthening Safety Supervision of
Relevant Parties and the Guidelines on Formulation
and Implementation of Safety Production Ban of
Everbright Environment in the second quarter of
2022, in order to further strengthen the whole-
process supervision of relevant parties and, in
particular, key relevant parties. To continuously
improve the overall quality of safety and
environmental management personnel, the Company
carried out works in respect of certification of safety
and environmental management qualification and
enhanced training in this regard. Pushing forward the
“Three-year Action Plan for Specialized Production
Safety Rectifications”, the Company adopted
targeted measures to alleviate major safety risks. A
dual prevention mechanism of hierarchical safety risk
management and identification and management of
hidden hazards has been established to promote
the continuous development of the dual prevention
system among various business sectors. The
Company also upgraded the two major platforms
for environmental management and inspection, in
a bid to expand the scope of project supervision.
In the first quarter of 2022, the Company initiated
the development of a safety and environmental
risk information platform, through which it
facilitated analysis and early warning of safety and
environmental risks by integrating online monitoring
and offline supervision, as well as leveraging technical
means. Capitalizing on technological innovation, the
Company has reinforced management and control.
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56 China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis EE ExlshE DT

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

In the first half of 2022, a large-scale safety
inspection adhering to the principle of “no restricted
areas, no blind spots and zero tolerance” was
carried out in two phases. The Company further
strengthened supervision of safe production
processes and rectification of risks and hidden
hazards at production sites, hence pushing forward
the general prevention and control of safety risks on
an ongoing basis.

Staff turnover risk: Most of the newly-commenced
projects of the Group are located in remote area with
poor surrounding environment. In addition, driven by
the limitation of total remuneration management, a
high staff turnover rate may be recorded. Due to the
rapid growth of the industry, talent poaching from
industry competitors in respect of management and
technical personnel has become more prevalent.
The Group is committed to nurturing an outstanding
corporate culture. To provide more development
opportunities for its employees, the Group has
developed a vast development platform, forging a
multi-lane career development path of “management,
skills and competency” for its employees. The Group
continues to boost employees’ sense of achievement
while retaining talents by offering a promising career
and maintaining a harmonious relationship. The
Group has stepped up its efforts in providing training
in order to enhance the comprehensive quality
and professional skills of its general managers,
supervisors and backup management personnel in all
aspects. It carried out work in relation to assessment
and recruitment of professional and technical staff as
well as strengthened the cultivation of reserve talents
of the Group. Based on the appraisals, the Group
would be able to build up and enrich its reserve
talent pool regularly. The Group has also expanded
its recruitment channels and further improved its
staff assignment through on-campus recruitment,
promotion on websites, referral by internal staff as
well as open internal selection. After the leave of an
employee, the Group, upon communication with the
information management department, immediately
closes the relevant employee’s office automation
(OA) system account and email account. For certain
business sectors, employees who have confidentiality
obligations with the Group are required to enter into
confidentiality agreements.
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Interim Report 2022
ZERCEhHRE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Procurement compliance risk: Despite the fact that
more and more projects commenced operation, the
number of projects under construction remained
high, resulting in a relatively large procurement
scale of the Group in 2022. Coupled with the
increasingly stringent requirements for procurement
compliance, any compliance-related issues such
as bid rigging and collusive bidding, fraud and
corruption may have a significant negative impact on
the Company’s reputation and other aspects. The
Company continued to improve the development
of its tendering and procurement system by
formulating and issuing a series of management
systems including the Procurement Management
System and Accountability Management Measures
on Non-compliant Procurement, and compiling
operation manuals such as Working Guidelines for
Handling Bid-Rigging and Collusive Bidding based
on actual needs. Meanwhile, the Company further
improved and upgraded its electronic transaction
platform for tendering and procurement. Based on
the needs of the procurement business in aspects
such as compliance management, and prevention
and control of bid rigging and collusive bidding,
over 400 functions in total have been developed
and improved in the platform. The Company also
increased the use of technical means to support and
ensure compliance, such as screening bid rigging
and collusive bidding activities by identifying feature
codes such as “motherboard information” and “hard
disk information” from computers of the bidders,
and using websites such as “TianYanCha.com”
and “creditchina.gov.cn”. In the first half of 2022
the Company issued the Notice Regarding Further
Standardization of Procurement Management and
the Notice Regarding Strengthened Supervision
and Management of Tendering and Procurement,
and established the Procurement Supervision
and Management Team. In June, the Company
organized the warning education activity under the
theme of “Promoting Education by Case Study” to
firmly establish legal and discipline concepts and
awareness of institutional rules, so as to foster a
culture of compliance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis EE ExlshE DT

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Cost control risk: In 2021, as affected by the
industrial restructuring and recurrence of Pandemic
nationwide, material and labour costs of large-scale
construction projects in China recorded different
increments as compared with that of 2020. With the
normalization of pandemic prevention measures,
it is highly probable that the operating costs of the
Group will increase in 2022. By fully leveraging the
economies of scale and advantages of flexibility
from groupwide and regional procurement, the
Company changed the factor formula with agreed
unit price to tackle price fluctuations. Besides,
the Company increased the number of qualified
suppliers introduced to fully explore the cooperation
relationship with long-term suppliers from different
sectors with an aim to effectively reduce its
procurement costs. More efforts have been devoted
to the promotion and application of technological
innovation and new technologies such as smart
power plant and high-parameter generating units
to enhance the operation standards and efficiency.
Through the effective analysis conducted by the
big data operation platform, the Company further
reduced the amount of material consumed on
the premise of ensuring compliance with relevant
emission standards and stable operation. The
reviews on preliminary designs and checklists
for amount of construction work have also been
strengthened to enhance contract management.
Risk control measures were taken into account in
advance, and terms relating to price adjustment
have been included in the contracts. The Company
strictly implemented the Regulations on Work
Permit Management to reinforce onsite construction
management.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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ZERCEhHRE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Policy changing risk: In 2021, policies related
to national subsidy have been promulgated
successively, which further clarified the requirements
of “determining expenses based on revenue,
ensuring no new debts from new projects,
clarifying responsibilities of the central and local
governments and adopting competitive bidding
for grid connection”. In respect of risks relating
to the cancellation of national subsidies, the
Company formulated the 25 Measures to Address
the Cancellation of National Subsidies to minimize
the adverse impact of the cancellation of national
subsidies on the Group through multiple measures.
Subiject to the fulfillment of financial requirements and
compliance with safety and quality management, the
Company strived to be included in the total subsidy
for the year as early as possible by accelerating the
construction of the waste-to-energy projects which
did not commence operation. To focus on four major
areas, namely “environment, resources, energy
and climate” and promote the new development
landscape of “three areas”, the Company introduced
the Administrative Measures for Market Development
by adhering to the principle of “Three Priorities
and One Clarification”. In respect of securing
policy support, the Company maintained good
communication with the relevant authorities, actively
analysed their policies and provided feedbacks and
recommendations, so as to respond to investors
concerns and stabilize the market expectation. It
also vigorously promoted the use of high-parameter
generating units as well as technologies such as
intermediate reheating and reuse of residual heat to
enhance the residual heat utilisation efficiency of the
plant as a whole, thereby compensating for the effect
of the policy adjustments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis EE ExlshE DT

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Construction project management risk: The
latest national subsidy policies have proposed
higher requirements on the management on
construction progress as well as legal and compliant
construction when applying for national subsidies
of new projects. Meanwhile, the construction
industry involves higher inherent risks relating to
safety management, the improper performance of
duties by the relevant personnel of construction
companies and supervisory bodies will result in
greater challenges for ensuring construction safety
and quality. The Company has comprehensively
advanced the implementation of project information
management system. Furthermore, leveraging on
its extensive experience in project construction, it
has formulated standardised construction schedule
based on different types of business and project
scales and recorded the completion of milestones
and the progress of obtaining relevant licenses and
permits on a real-time basis through the continuous
and comprehensive tracking of each project’s
progress. Regarding the delayed projects, the
Company timely carried out onsite due diligence
and organised special meetings to analyse the
difficulties and causes of such issues and adopted
targeted measures. In addition, the Company strictly
implemented the Construction Budget Management
Measures and relevant working standards, which
laid out overall requirements for the cost control
mechanism over the whole process from investment
projections to design, tender, construction and
settlement, and launched the construction budget
management information system in order to enhance
the level of standardisation and formalisation of its
construction budgets.
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ZERCEhHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT

The Group pays close attention to the operational
impacts brought to the environment and society.
The Environmental and Social Management System
("ESMS”) has been established in accordance
with the Safeguard Policy Statement of Asian
Development Bank and other best practices
worldwide. The ESMS covers the entire project cycle
from the early-stage planning and design to the final-
stage operation and contains requirements in the
fields of environmental and social impact screening
and categorisation, resettlement, indigenous
peoples, environmental impact assessment,
information disclosure, public participation, gender
equality, due diligence and review, and monitoring
and reporting. The system ensures the Group’s
operational activities comply with the international
environmental and social safeguard principles and
requirements.

The Group has fully implemented the environmental,
safety, health and social responsibility (“ESHS”)
management system since 2016 to further improve
the implementation of supervision system in business
operation. The system comprises management
standards to provide procedural guidelines on
significant ESHS issue identification, auditing,
incident investigation and reporting, occupational
injury treatment, and contractor ESHS management.
The implementation of the system has not only
promoted sustainable development within the Group,
but also extended its safety culture and relevant
policies to the whole supply chain.

The Board and senior management review
sustainability strategies of the Group on a regular
basis, and revise the strategies when appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 E w5 7

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group’s waste-to-energy projects are designed
and operated fully in compliance with the Standard
for Pollution Control on the Municipal Solid Waste
Incineration (GB18485-2014), local standards,
as well as other requirements as set forth in the
environmental impact assessment reports approved
by the local government, while the daily average
values of online flue gas continuously monitored
parameters are well below the respective emissions
limits as stipulated under the Industrial Emissions
Directive (2010/75/EU) and its relevant annexes and
amendments. Moreover, all of the Group’s biomass
combustion operations meet the Emission Standard
of Air Pollutants for Thermal Power Plants (GB13223-
2011), local standards, as well as other requirements
as set forth in the environmental impact assessment
reports approved by the local government.

The Group continued proactively and timely
disclosing emissions data and environmental
management information of its projects on Everbright
Environment’s corporate website, including the
daily average values of the 5 indicators of flue gas
and furnace temperature data from the operation of
waste-to-energy projects have been connected to
the automatic monitoring data information disclosure
platform of the MEE: https://ljgk.envsc.cn/index.html.
The Group was also devoted to improving the
information sharing platforms which connect with
the Group’s Hong Kong headquarters and Shenzhen
management office for real-time capture of projects’
operational information to ensure compliant
operation, and to timely report the performance of the
Group’s projects to the stakeholders.
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THE IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC

Under the normalization of the Pandemic, the Group
has given full consideration to all the pandemic-
related risks as well as prevention and control
measures in its daily operation. With the joint efforts
of the management and all employees, the Group
made efforts to prevent and control the pandemic,
and completed various production and operation
tasks in an orderly manner. The Group also made
a donation of HK$1.95 million in the name of China
Everbright Group’s companies in Hong Kong and
actively set up volunteer teams to support frontline
workers in fighting against the pandemic in Hong
Kong. In response to the resurgence of the pandemic
in various provinces and cities in China this year, the
Group reiterated its requirements for all business
units to make arrangements for internal staff and
personnel of contractors to properly implement
pandemic prevention and responsive measures
based on the requirements of local governments
and actual work conditions. Such measures include
minimising the flow of people, reserving sufficient
materials for production, daily lives and pandemic
prevention, paying attention to employees’ health
conditions, providing sufficient protection for the
employees, and ensuring safe and stable production
of projects as well as compliance with relevant
emission standards.
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Disclosure of Interests
BEEZER

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the Company’s chief executives
and their respective associates in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and/or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company
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Number of Approximate
shares held  percentage of

(ordinary total issued

shares) shares ¢

Nature of BEZ BB ET

Name of Director Capacity interest BnE ¢! [ B2

e 40 BmE (Lak) Rl

Fan Yan Hok, Philip Beneficial Owner Personal 11,154,810 0.18%
BB EREAA {EYN

Note: Based on 6,142,975,292 shares of the Company in issue
as at 30 June 2022.
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ZERCEhHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Long position in shares of Everbright Greentech,
a listed subsidiary of the Company
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Number of  percentage of

shares held total issued

(ordinary shares) shares (M)

Nature of BEZ HEBET

Name of Director Capacity interest BEE ¢! R 48 8

ERE 40 EntE (Eak) R A

Hu Yanguo Beneficial Owner Personal 287,000 0.01%
HIEE ERBEAA fEA

Qian Xiaodong Beneficial Owner Personal 242,000 0.01%
BEBRR EufBA fEA

Fan Yan Hok, Philip Beneficial Owner Personal 100,494 Below 0.01%

BB E=BEA fAA 1£7#0.01%

Note: Based on 2,066,078,000 shares of Everbright Greentech
in issue as at 30 June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
and their respective associates had interests or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Disclosure of Interests B E ¥

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the period under review was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding
companies or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 30 June 2022, the following persons (other than
any Directors or chief executives of the Company)
were substantial shareholders and had interests or
short positions in shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange:

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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Number of long

position shares/ Approximate
underlying long percentage of
position shares total issued
(ordinary shares) shares e
irefkin/ DEEHET
Name of company Capacity Nature of interest BB KRG L
NGE L) ERE 218 (BEk) BARLHE
Gentral Huijin Investment Ltd.  Interest of controlled ~ Corporate interest ~ 2,642,112,137 43.01%
(*Huijin”) tote @) corporation NEER
HAESREBRELLR REHI AR R
([E4 |) (e
China Everbright Group ™=@ Interest of controlled ~ Corporate interest ~ 2,642,112,137 43.01%
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ZERCEhHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(1) Based on 6,142,975,292 shares of the Company in issue
as at 30 June 2022.

(2) Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council
of the PRC and holds 63.16% equity interests of China
Everbright Group. It is deemed to be interested in the
2,642,112,137 shares indirectly held by China Everbright
Group.

(3) China Everbright Group holds 100% of the issued shares
of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited (“CE
Hong Kong”). CE Hong Kong holds (i) 100% of the issued
shares of Datten Investments Limited (“Datten”) which in
turn holds 55% of the issued shares of Guildford Limited
(“Guildford”); (ii) 100% of the issued shares of Everbright
Investment & Management Limited (“EIM”); and (i) 45%
of the issued shares of Guildford, respectively. Out of the
2,642,112,137 shares, 2,430,442,287 shares are held by
Guildford. The remaining 211,669,850 shares are held by
EIM. Accordingly, China Everbright Group is deemed to
be interested in 2,430,442,287 shares held by Guildford
and 211,669,850 shares held by EIM.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2022, the
Company had not been notified of any other persons
(other than any Directors or chief executives of the
Company or substantial shareholders) who had
interests or short positions in shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME
The Group has no share options schemes during the
period under review.
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Corporate Governance

A\ A g S
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Group upholds the management principle
of “People-oriented, Pragmatism, Creativity and
Systematic Management”. The Board firmly believes
that high-quality, comprehensive and high-level
corporate governance is the cornerstone of the
Group, which can create long-term value for the
Group and is vital to the sustainable development
of the Group. It can also safeguard the interests of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
and other stakeholders of the Company, including
but not limited to customers, suppliers, employees
and the general public. The Board and management
strive to maintain high-level corporate governance
standards, and continue to strengthen corporate
governance, internal control and risk management
systems through a series of rules, regulations and
policies, and actively improve transparency and
accountability. The Company strictly complies with
the laws and regulations of the places where it
operates, and complies with the applicable guidelines
and rules issued by the regulatory authorities.
The Board will continue to monitor and review the
Company’s corporate governance practices to
further enhance corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules has been
duly adopted by the Board as the code on corporate
governance practices of the Company.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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ZERCEhHRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE
(continued)

The Company complied with all Code Provisions as
set out in the CG Code throughout the six months
ended 30 June 2022. The Company will continue
to commit to enhancing its corporate governance
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business, and to reviewing and assessing from time
to time its corporate governance practices to ensure
the same comply with the CG Code and align with the
latest developments.

Please refer to the Company’s 2021 annual report
published in April 2022 for more information on the
Company’s corporate governance practices.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 5 Executive Directors
and 4 Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INED(s)”). List of Directors and their Role and
Function is available on the websites of the Company
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(“HKEx”). The number of INEDs represents not
less than one-third of the Board as required under
the Listing Rules, at least one of whom possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. INEDs
provide the Group with diversified experience and
professionalism. Their advice and views as well as
participation in the Board and Board committee
meetings bring independent views, advice and
judgements on issues relating to the strategy and
development of the Group, business operation and
performance, risk control, internal controls and
conflict of interests, etc., to ensure the Shareholders’
interests are taken into consideration.
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Board has established 5 Board
committees, namely the Audit Committee (the “Audit
Committee”), Risk Management Committee (the “Risk
Management Committee”), Nomination Committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), Remuneration
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
Disclosure Committee (the “Disclosure Committee”),
with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with their respective authorities and duties:

1.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises
3 INEDs, namely Ms. Li Shuk Yin, Edwina
(chairman), Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip and
Mr. Zhai Haitao. Its primary responsibilities
include but not limited to review the Group’s
financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems, internal and
external audit and such other financial and
accounting matters of the Group, and to
oversee the relationship between the Company
and Ernst & Young, the external auditor of the
Company, etc. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have been established in
writing and are available on the websites of the
Company and HKEx.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

2.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee currently
comprises 3 INEDs, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok,
Philip (chairman), Mr. Suo Xuquan, Ms. Li Shuk
Yin, Edwina, Mr. Luan Zusheng, the Executive
Director and the CEO, Mr. An Xuesong, the
Executive Director, the Vice President and the
Chief Financial Officer (“CFQO”), and Ms. Guo
Ying, the General Manager of Internal Audit
Department and Risk Management Department
of the Company. Its primary responsibilities
include but not limited to provide oversight of
the Company’s risk management programs,
and to review the effectiveness of the
management’s processes for identifying,
assessing, mitigating and monitoring
enterprise-wide risks. The terms of reference
of the Risk Management Committee have been
established in writing.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently
comprises Mr. Huang Haiging, the Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board
(chairman), and all the 4 INEDs, namely Mr.
Fan Yan Hok, Philip, Mr. Zhai Haitao, Mr.
Suo Xuquan and Ms. Li Shuk Yin, Edwina. Its
primary responsibilities include but not limited
to review annually the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board, to review and
report the Board diversity to the Board, to
assess the independence of the INEDs, to
make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment or re-
designation of Directors by taking into account
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy, to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of the senior management, and to assess
the qualifications and competencies of the
candidates, so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent. The terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee have been
established in writing and are available on the
websites of the Company and HKEXx.
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited

Corporate Governance =¥&%4

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

4.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently
comprises Mr. Zhai Haitao, the INED
(chairman), Mr. Huang Haiging, the Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board, and
3 other INEDs, namely Mr. Fan Yan Hok,
Philip, Mr. Suo Xuquan and Ms. Li Shuk Yin,
Edwina. Its primary responsibilities include
but not limited to determine, with delegated
responsibilities by the Board, the remuneration
packages of the individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee have been established in writing
and are available on the websites of the
Company and HKEx.

Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Committee currently comprises
Mr. Luan Zusheng, the Executive Director
and the CEO (chairman), Mr. Hu Yanguo, the
Executive Director and the Vice President,
Mr. Qian Xiaodong, the Executive Director
and the Vice President, and Mr. An Xuesong,
the Executive Director, the Vice President and
the CFO, as well as Ms. Poon Yuen Ling, the
Company Secretary. The Board has delegated
the day-to-day execution of its continuous
disclosure obligations to the Disclosure
Committee to ensure the compliance of the
Company with its disclosure obligations. The
terms of reference of the Disclosure Committee
have been established in writing.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Other than the 5 Board committees above, the
Company has established the Management Decision
Committee which is responsible for the day-to-
day administration, operation and management
of the business and affairs of the Group. Its
primary responsibilities include but not limited
to review the Group’s major decisions, major
personnel appointment and removal, major project
arrangements, as well as the arrangements of
large capital amount, and to review and formulate
the Group’s development strategies and goals,
long term business development plans, directions,
policies and guidelines, etc. The Management
Decision Committee also takes charge of reviewing
the investment projects of the Group, after being
recommended by the Project Advisory Committee.
For project risk management and project
technological risk management, the Group has set
up the Project Advisory Committee to monitor and
assess risks regularly, boost related management
standards and evaluate investment projects as
well as assess the technologies used in different
investment projects. For project financial control,
the Group insists on stringent budget management,
and has set up a Budget Management Centre that
focuses on monitoring construction budgets of the
projects. In addition, the Group has also set up
Internal Audit Department and Risk Management
Department to perform internal audits, and risk
management and control functions respectively to
bolster the Group’s management standards.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct for Directors’ transactions in securities
of the Company. Having made specific enquiries to
the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings as
set out in the Model Code throughout their tenure
during the six months ended 30 June 2022.
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FEERRE (RE)BRDE

Other Information
Hirgpl

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in information of the Directors since the
Company'’s last published 2021 annual report are as
follows:

(1)

Mr. Mar Selwyn retired as an INED with effect
from the conclusion of the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 18 May 2022
(“2022 AGM”). At the same time, Mr. Mar
Selwyn ceased to act as the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of each of
the Risk Management Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee;

Ms. Li Shuk Yin, Edwina was appointed as an
INED at the 2022 AGM and was also appointed
as the chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of each of the Risk Management
Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, with effect from 18
May 2022;

Mr. Wang Tianyi resigned as the Executive
Director and Chairman of the Board, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, a
member of the Remuneration Committee
and the authorised representative under Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules (the “Authorised
Representative”), with effect from 18 June
2022;
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(4)  Mr. Huang Haiging was appointed as the
Executive Director and Chairman of the Board,
the chairman of the Nomination Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Authorised Representative, with effect
from 18 June 2022. At the same time, Mr.
Huang Haiging was also appointed in place of
Mr. Wang Tianyi as the non-executive director
and chairman of the board of directors, and
chairman of the nomination committee of
Everbright Greentech, a subsidiary of the
Company which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange; and

(5)  Mr. Luan Zusheng resigned as a director
of Everbright Financial Holding Asset
Management Co., Ltd. with effect from 3 July
2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware
of other information which is required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS OF HONG KONG
SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
With effect from 15 August 2022, the Hong Kong
Share Registrar and Transfer Office of the Company,
Tricor Tengis Limited, changed its address from Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong to 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has declared payment of an interim
dividend of HK15.0 cents per share (2021: HK19.0
cents per share) for the six months ended 30 June
2022, payable to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company
(the “Register of Members”) on Friday, 9 September
2022. The interim dividend will be paid to the
Shareholders on or around Thursday, 6 October
2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’
entitlement to the interim dividend, the Register
of Members will be closed from Wednesday, 7
September 2022 to Friday, 9 September 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. Shareholders, whose
names appear on the Register of Members on the
record date, i.e. Friday, 9 September 2022, will be
entitled to the interim dividend. In order to qualify for
the interim dividend, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s share registrar and transfer office,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6 September 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the six months ended 30 June 2022,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.

REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim
financial results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 for the Board’s approval.

By Order of the Board

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
Huang Haiqing

Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 17 August 2022
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Interim Financial Report
AR ISR

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30 June 2022

’r

FEEER

—ZE-_—FXA=1+HIAREA

For the six months ended 30 June
BE2AA=THIERER

2022 2021
—E-CEF —E--F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT
REVENUE Wi 21,448,683 26,495,324
Direct costs and operating expenses HEERAREEER (13,819,872) (17,994,592
Gross profit E7 7,628,811 8,500,732
Other revenue Hiplzs 594,138 412,678
Other income and gains/(losses), net EA R/
(BB)F8 (700,501) (171,940)
Administrative expenses THER (1,605,785) (1,388,868)
PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIMITIES ~ B4&E 8 FE &7 5,916,663 7,352,602
Finance costs HBER (1,684,504) (1,436,973)
Share of profits of joint ventures FiEa et 2R 61,575 46,050
Share of profits of associates kNG 32,358 22,311
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B A& 4,326,092 5,983,990
Income tax FisH (983,339) (1,379,777)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD KER BT 3,342,753 4,604,213
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: e
Equity holders of the Company FRREREBA 2,811,148 3,887,378
Holders of perpetual capital instruments ~ X EEATERBA 1 16,255 -
Non-controling Interests IHERER 515,350 716,835
3,342,753 4,604,213

EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY

- Basic and diluted

HK45.76 centsi& 1l

HK63.28 centsfll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the six months ended 30 June 2022

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
REEARE (RE)BRAF

mEHEBERK
HE_ZT-_—F,A=1+HILANEA

For the six months ended 30 June
B2/ A=TRILAER

2022 202
-g-cE “E--F%
(Unaudited) (Unaud\tqd)
(REER) (REEHR)
HKS/000 HKS000
BT BB
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD KEBEF 3,342,753 4,604,213
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/LOSS) Efb2EHA/(B8)
Other comprehensive income/{oss) that may be AR ERI g ﬁ iﬁﬂ SRRL
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: HM%@W\/
Exchange differences: REE:
Exchange differences on translation of Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ\ﬁ%FEZ[ﬂﬁﬁ
foreign operations (4,010,470) 1,934,608
Debt instruments at fair value through other 4 ’ME#)\H@EEW/\Z
comprehensive income: BEIA
Changes in fair value INEE: @J 16,972 -
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be 3 B/ BB ] 44 £375 ‘*EKT BRL
reclassified to proft or loss in subsequent periods ~ Et2EMA/(E18) %% (3,993,498) 1,934,608
Other comprehensive income that will not be RE éﬁﬁfﬂﬁi%ﬁ“%ﬁxﬁﬁéiz
reclassified o profit or loss in subsequent periods: ~ EMZERA
Other financial assets measured at fair value through ?ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁiﬁw/\uﬁz
other comprehensive income: H{ SIBEE
Changes in fair value NAEES - 5213
Net other comprehensive income that wil notbe  REEHIBIT €8NP EERER L
reclassfied to proft or loss in subsequent periods B2 EMAEE = 5,213
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) rEEEM2 AR/ (BB
FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX GRS (3,993,498) 1,030,821
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) TEE2ERN/(BB)ER
FOR THE PERIOD (650,745 6,544,034
ATTRBUTABLE TO: IEUR
Equity holders of the Company ARFEEREA (609,511) 5480073
Holders of perpetual capital instruments MEERTERBA 16,255 -
Non-controling interests R ER (157,489) 1,063,961
(650,745) 6,544,034
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT & PR
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
30 June 2022 R FXA=+H
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E-Cf —E-—F
AA=+H FTZA=1+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BifsE BT T BET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FNBEE
Investment properties REME 175,369 181,512
Property, plant and equipment  #1% « R k& E 8,691,871 8,921,701
Right-of-use assets FREEE 966,325 1,009,094
9,833,565 10,112,307
Goodwill EES 9 1,891,751 2,353,687
Intangible assets BREE 31,341,547 30,474,870
Interests in joint ventures BECERER 921,978 811,375
Interests in associates BN B 651,053 606,970
Contract assets ANAEE 10 101,276,740 101,971,151
Finance lease receivables R AR E U IR 14,402 15,464
Other financial assets HiBI & E 205,646 142,748
Other receivables, deposits ,HWEH&TAIE e
and prepayments RIER T 11 3,905,121 4,076,627
Deferred tax assets iﬂﬁﬁﬁ%lﬁiiﬁé 383,119 440,770
Total non-current assets ERENEEELE 150,424,922 151,005,969
CURRENT ASSETS MBEE
Inventories ??é% 1,014,070 1,258,539
Contract assets BNEE 10 12,446,999 11,907,704
Finance lease receivables @ﬂéiiﬁéaﬁ‘uﬁ 807 771
Other financial assets HBsEE 237,716 222,880
Debtors, other receivables, FEURBR T « ELfth R EE -
deposits and prepayments &e RENFE 11 21,051,251 20,138,476
Tax recoverable EEESE 123,481 96,303
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 12 577,356 553,704
Deposits with banks with maturity FZ B =14 2
period over three months RITER 12 60,856 4,339
Cash and cash equivalents HERHFLEEY 13 14,074,339 15,046,943
Total current assets MEBEELE 49,586,875 49,229,659
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
REEARE (RE)BRAF

A MTBIRRR (&)

30 June 2022 —E-—F#XA=+H
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
;g::ﬂi —F. ——fF
AA=+H +=A=1+—-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt BT T BET T
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBAaE
Creditors, other payables and ~ FEfTERFN » H b EFT
accrued expenses DERESER 14 23,216,373 25,636,846
Interest-bearing borrowings SFEEE
- Secured —BHA 3,402,012 3,410,134
- Unsecured —EIK 13,385,784 10,530,590
16,787,796 13,940,724
Tax payable AREE 136,608 190,832
Total current liabilities REE EEE 40,140,777 39,768,402
NET CURRENT ASSETS TEEEFHE 9,446,098 9,461,257
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT B&ERREE &
LIABILITIES 159,871,020 160,467,226
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
30 June 2022

81

e SRR (&)
—E-—#XA=+H

30 June 31 December
2022 2021
—E-Cf —E-—F
AA=+H FTZA=1+-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERK) (RE2)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

i3 BT T BETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnEEE

Other payables H bR FR 14 797,033 839,348

Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE

- Secured —BHEHA 42,944,566 44,506,065

- Unsecured — IR 39,805,637 40,678,875

82,750,203 85,184,940

Deferred tax liabilities ERRIEEE 10,250,178 10,100,716

Total non-current liabilities FneaELEE 93,797,414 96,125,004

NET ASSETS BETHE 66,073,606 64,342,222

EQUITY s

Equity attributable to equity ADAERHBA

holders of the Company FEfh S

Share capital A 15 17,329,587 17,329,537

Reserves & 33,017,543 34,447 950
) 50,347,080 51,777,487

Non-controlling interests RS 12,254,837 12,564,735

Perpetual capital instruments ~~ XEEBEARTA

16 3,471,689 -

TOTAL EQUITY Bnes

66,073,606 64,342,222
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FEERIRE (@) BRAA

HK$34,447,950,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2022.

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 BT -__FA=1THI~EA
Goodwil
arising on Property
Share consolidation revaluation
capitl GelE resenve
e EE EE VEEL
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(7427 (x25%) (x258%)
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
fisk BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2022 “E--E-B-H 17,329,537 (986) 90,512
Proftfor the period Mﬁ W - = =
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period: ~ BREH2EUN /(B
Changes in fair velue of debt instruments at fair -~ &2% MHMW/\Z
value through other comprehensive income, f IEIEZM £9
net of tax (BR#E) = = =
Fxchange differences on translation of foreign fﬁﬁﬁ?\\ﬁ%FEZE 1E8
operations = = -
Total comprehensive income/[oss) for the period ~~ EBRAEULN /(El8) 2% - = =
Issuance of perpetual capital instruments BINEERIE 16 - - -
Dividend approved in respect of the previous year ~ EHtEZEEZRE 7 - - -
Capital contributions received by non FRENED Wiﬂ“ﬁﬁﬁx?
wholly-owned subsidieries from non-controling WaFEz 1A
sharenolders = = =
Acquisiton of non-controling interests in WENBLREARER
subsidiaries = = =
Dividend declared to non-controling shareholders 2 RKEBAZEERRE
of subsidiaries BRE - - -
t 30 June 2022 “E-CERACTH 17,329,537 (986)* 90,512
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated & RERBEEER-_ZTE=-—F X
reserves of HK$33,017,543,000 (31 December 2021: B=1THZEEHMBIRAKFAT

ﬁaﬁfﬁﬁé*ﬁﬁss 017,543,0007C
(—F——&+-A=1—8: &
#34,447,950,0007T) °
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KRRERREARE
Other financial
assets and debt
instruments
measured
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income reserve
BRRETA
EfpzERA Non- Perpetual
Bchnge #2784 Other Resene Retained controling capital Tota
fesene BBEER reserves fund profits Total inerests ~ instruments _equy
EXEE HELAGE AoiR Fhe REEF 48 HBhER  KEARIA EalE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(x@zn)  (AEER)  (REEn)  (E%R)  (RE8n)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)
HSOD HSND  HGON MWD HOWD NS0 HGND  HGOD DD
ST ABTRL EBTTL EET ABTRL BT EET ABTTL EBTTL
3,246,418 (99,113) 3,295,121 2,861,250 25,054,742 51,777,487 12,564,735 - 64,342,022
- - - - 2,811,148 2,811,148 515,350 16,255 3,342,753
- 10,549 - - - 10,549 6,423 - 16,972
(3,331,208) - - - - (3,331,208) (679,262) - (4,010,470)
(3,331,208) 10,549 - - 2,811,148 (509,511) (157,489) 16,255 (650,745)
- - - - - - - 3,455,434 3,455,434
- - - - (921,446) (921,446) - - (921,446)
- - - - - - 58,939 - 58,939
550 - - - - 550 (6,767) - (6,217)
- - - - - - (204,581) - (204,581)
(84,240)* (68,564 3,205,121 2,861,250* 26,944,444 50,347,080 12,254,837 3,471,689 66,073,606
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Interim Financial Report A HABt # R &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SAEREER(E)
CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2022 HE_ZT-_—F,A=1+HILANEA
Goodwil
arising on Property
Share consolidation revaluation
capitl GREE resenve

e EL7HE EEE
(Unaudited) (Unaudit ed) (Unaudit ed)
(72287) (72287) (72287)

Notes HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
4 8T B8t BETT
At 1 January 2021 “E--E-F-H 17,329,637 (98) 90,512
Profit for the period Mﬁ R - - -
Other comprehensive income for the period: %ﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁw}\
Changes i fair value of other financial assets RO ETAEBZENA
measured at fair valug through other HEZEMHREEY
comprehensive income, net of tax MEERENRAE) - - -
Exchange differences on translation of HERIEHEE/ERER
foreign operations - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period BR2EsAERE - - -
Dividend approved in respect of the previous year Bt E£EE RS 7 - - -

Capital contributions received by non wholl-owned 2 ENBARIFEREE
subsidries from non-controling shareholders BOLIE Zﬁéﬁg - - -

Acquisition of subsidiaries KEHEAT - - _
Accuisition of non-controling interests in WEHER T EhiEs

sUbsidiaries - - -
Dividend declared to non-controling shareholders ~ 2EKEATEERRE

of subsidlaries Bivd3 - - -

At 30 June 2021 RZEZ-55A=1H 17,329,637 (%86) 90,512
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Attributable to gqgity holders of the Company
RATEGFAARR
Other financial
assets and debt
instruments
measured
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
ingome reserve
BARETA
EYETTION Non-
Exchange 8l Other Resene Retained controling Tota
reserve HHEER 1esenves fund profits Total interests equity
EifiE  BEIARE AfbiE fife REEH #E FERES ERaE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unauditeq) (Unauditeq) (Unauditeq)
(RE28) (RE28) (RE28) (7E287) (7E287) (72287) (72287) (*2287)
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ABTTL ABTTL ABTTL ABTTL EBTTL EETTL EETTL ST
1,007,794 (12,450) 3,295,716 2,223,909 21,038,025 45,062,057 10,482,547 55,544,604
- - - - 3,887,378 3,887,378 716,83 4,604,213
- 5213 - - - 5213 - 5213
1,687,482 - - - - 1,087,482 347,126 1,934,608
1,687,482 513 - - 3,887,378 5,480,073 1,063,961 6,544,034
- - - - (982,876) (982,876) - (982,876)
- - - - - - 79,765 79,765
- - - - - - 327870 1810
181 - (589) - - (408) (2,113) (2.521)
- - - - - - (200,844) (200,844)
2,685,457 (7.231) 3,295,127 2,023,909 23,942,521 49,558,846 11,751,186 61,310,082




86 China Everbright Environment Group Limited
REERRE (RE)BRDE

Interim Financial Report & #8175 8 &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mEREMER
CASH FLOWS \
For the six months ended 30 June 2022 HE-_Z-—&#A=1RHI~NEA

For the six months ended 30 June
BERA=TRLEAER

2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REER)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 BRI BETTL
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMITES ~ B&EEfiaELTE
Profit before tax LRAIER 4,326,092 5,983,990
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9% - BEREENE 4 324,572 249,745
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEERE 4 34,941 31,901
Amortisation of intangible assets EYEERH 4 677,685 494,923
Finance costs BHER 5 1,684,504 1,436,973
Dividend income BEMA 4 = (169)
Interest income LN 4 (79,361) (65,467)
Share of profits of joint ventures MEaatE R (61,575) (46,050)
Share of profits of associates il (32,358) (22,311)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: INNEL VAL eads %
Other financial assets Ly BAE
- unlisted equity investment -k EmRARE 4 (318) (479)
Other financial assets Ay BEE
- unlisted investments -k EmRE 4 11,396 17,363
Impairment of debtors EUEFRE 4 219,946 142,917
Impairment of other receivables EthEWIERR 4 71,306 5,459
Impairment of contract assets AMEERE 4 6,833 8,258
Impairment of goodwil BEER 4 376,705 -
Impairment of intangible assets ENEERR 4 14,699 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal and write-off of HERMENE - BE
property, plant and equipment, net RELER/ (s
it 82 (1,582)
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net 1) (200,600) 128,041
7,374,549 8,363,530
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &R/ () 193,193 (353,133)
Increase in contract assets ANEEEN (4,491,468) (11,558,334)
Increase in debtors, other receivables, JEUERSN - Kb EUERT
deposits and prepayments FeRENH Iﬁiﬂﬁﬂﬂ (2,004,733) (2,125,905)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, other B KRR
payables and accrued expenses RETEBREN/( /Jﬁ/ (1,588,372) 3,340,438

Cash used in operations fEEz A4 (516,831) (2,333,404)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SERERERE)
CASH FLOWS (continued) .
For the six months ended 30 June 2022 BE_ T —FA=tHIt,NAA

For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=TRIEAEA

2022 2021
—E-CE —E-F
(Unaudlted) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REER)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 BETR BETTL
Interest received EYFIE 79,361 65,467
People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”) and BATEARLAE
overseas income taxes paid ([hE ) R EsNER (497,461) (571,602)
Net cash flows used in operating activities
(934,031) (2,839,539)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ %8 E8fiE5 22
Dividend received Blike - 156
Purchase of items of property, plant and BEVE  BERRE
equipment (446,930) (1,101,830)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, — HENE - BERE(E
plant and equipment Pﬁ’E' B 33,259 19,669
Principal portion of lease payments %ﬁ‘*ﬁm2$é i) (11,365) (57,248)
Additions of intangible assets BEENEE (2,609,051) (2,791,214)
Acaquisition of subsidiaries WERE AT 17 - (797,697)
Capital contrioutions to joint ventures TARENE (85,988) (32,350)
Capital contribution to an associate TEBENT (36,968) -
Increase in amounts due from an associate AN R (202) (374)
Increase in non-current portion of prepayments &4 ZUEZEEIEAH (3211 (4,656) (925,815)
Repayment from finance lease receivables WAHERNTEER 365 345
Purchase of other financial assets BEHMABAE (102,008) -
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets ﬁ‘iﬁmﬁﬁ BEEZHBHE - 9,894
Decrease in other financial assets EhyBEERYD - 236,900
Increase in deposits with banks with maturty ~ EEHBA= 84 2 BTER
period over three months 0 (56,694) (15,275)

Net cash flows used in investing activities

(3,320,238) (5,454,840)
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited
FEERIRE (@) BRAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2022

o ATH A A B &)
%T\miﬁf&m?%( =

fF/\H +E.|J:/\1 ﬂ

For the six months ended 30 June
BEZRAZTRIEAEER

2022 2021
—E-CE 5%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REB2R) (REzEn)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BT BETT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVMITIES  BEEBIFTEHE L2
Proceeds from issue of perpetual capital BIKEERTEAMBTE
instruments 16 3,455,434 -
Proceeds from issue of medium-term B E}J%ﬁ%ﬁ“‘(mﬂ By )
notes (‘MTN), and super and short-term LRSS g ([REE
commercial papers (‘SCP"), net of related Eﬂﬁ%j)ﬁﬂ%%}(lﬁi(am
expenses paid RENEBERY) 3,931,441 3,618,506
Repayment of asset-backed securities and SCP B2 BE X B &SR
BERRES (1,189,576) (31,143)
New bank and other loans FRRTRENED 13,418,642 17,234,132
Repayment of bank and other loans BERTREMER (12,895,369) (6,662,889)
Capital contributions received by non F2ENBLRIEHE
wholly-owned subsidiaries from REUBFEZLES
non-controlling shareholders 58,939 79,765
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in WENB A R RER
Subsidiaries (6,217) (2,521)
Increase in amounts due to non-controlling ﬁﬁﬁ% Tiﬁ TRz
shareholders of subsidiaries SRS 956 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits Tﬁﬁfﬁﬁm B/ (1) (46,211) 303,148
Interest paid BIFIE (1,731,845) (1,323,244)
Interest portion of lease payments BERS e (2,583) (5,281)
Principal portion of lease payments %ﬁ,f‘m2$§uﬁfﬁ (24,964) (24,241)
Dividend paid to equity holders BRALAERREALRE
of the Company (921,446) (982,876)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders 2B AFEHERIRE
of subsidiaries 28 (204,581) (209,473)
Net cash flows from financing activities ABEHERERET 3,842,620 11,993,883
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (412,549) 3,699,504
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 15,046,943 10,860,693
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net (560,055) 233,980
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF PERIOD 13 14,074,339 14,794,177
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e T ERAR MR

NOTES TO UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
For the six months ended 30 June 2022

1.1 CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
China Everbright Environment Group Limited
(the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office
of the Company is located at Room 2703, 27th
Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong.

During the six months ended 30 June 2022,
the principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are construction, environmental energy
project operation (waste-to-energy plants, food
and kitchen waste treatment projects, sludge
treatment and disposal projects, leachate
treatment projects, methane-to-energy plants,
fecal treatment project, fly ash landfill project,
medical waste treatment project and solid
waste treatment project), greentech project
operation (integrated biomass utilisation
projects, hazardous and solid waste treatment
projects, solar energy projects and wind
power projects, and provision of environmental
remediation services), environmental water
project operation (waste water treatment plants,
water supply, reusable water treatment plants,
sludge treatment, sponge city construction,
river-basin ecological restoration, waste water
source heat pump projects, leachate treatment,
research and development of water environment
technologies and engineering projects), conduct
of environmental protection technology research
and development, provision of environmental-
related technological services, design of
environmental protection projects, provision
of environmental protection project equipment
construction and installation services and sales
of related equipment, provision of waste sorting,
renewable resources utilisation, sanitation
operation services, sales of energy-saving street
lamps, energy management contract projects,
and investment holding.
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1.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited interim financial information
for the six months ended 30 June 2022 has
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and the applicable disclosure
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The accounting policies and basis of preparation
adopted in the preparation of the unaudited
interim financial information are consistent with
those adopted in the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 except
for the changes in accounting policies as further
detailed in note 1.3 below. The unaudited interim
financial information is presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The financial information contains condensed
consolidated financial statements and selected
explanatory notes. The notes include an
explanation of events and transactions that are
significant to an understanding of the changes in
financial position and performance of the Group
since the 2021 annual financial statements.
The condensed consolidated interim financial
information does not include all the information
and disclosures required in the annual financial
statements, and should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2021.

The financial information relating to the year
ended 31 December 2021 that is included in
this unaudited interim financial information as
comparative information does not constitute
the Company’s statutory annual consolidated
financial statements for that year but is
derived from those financial statements.
Further information relating to those statutory
financial statements required to be disclosed in
accordance with section 436 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:
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HERE

1.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The Company has delivered the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 to the Registrar of Companies as required
by section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of Schedule 6 to,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Company’s auditor has reported on the
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021. The auditor’s report was
unqualified; did not include a reference to any
matters to which the auditor drew attention
by way of emphasis without qualifying its
report; and did not contain a statement under
sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) for the first time for the current
period’s unaudited interim financial information:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts —

Cost of Fulfilling

a Contract
Amendments to

HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,

lllustrative Examples

accompanying HKFRS

16, and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2018-2020

1.2

1.3
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4r& B ¥ 3R R Kzt

1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
The nature and impact of the revised HKFRSs
are described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a
reference to the previous Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework?”)
issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments
also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer
to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather
than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, respectively,
instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date.
The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to business combinations
that occurred on or after 1 January 2022.
As there were no business combination
that occurred during the period, the
amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in
April 2021 extends the availability of the
practical expedient for lessees to elect
not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic
by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical
expedient applies to rent concessions for
which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022, provided the
other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is
effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendment recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits
at the beginning of the current accounting
period. The amendment did not have any
significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity
from deducting from the cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost
of those items, in profit or loss. The Group
has applied the amendments retrospectively
to items of property, plant and equipment
made available for use on or after 1 January
2021. Since there was no sale of items
produced while making property, plant and
equipment available for use on or after 1
January 2021, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
(d) Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the

purpose of assessing whether a contract
is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively
to contracts for which it was not yet fulfilled
all its obligation at 1 January 2022 and
no onerous contracts were identified.
Therefore, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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1.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(e) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS
41. Details of the amendments that are
applicable to the Group are as follows:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies
the fees that an entity includes when
assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms
of the original financial liability. These
fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to the
financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after 1 January 2022.
As there was no modification of the
Group’s financial liabilities during the
period, the amendment did not have
any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

(e)
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1.3

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The Group has not early adopted any standard or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet
effective.

In addition, the Group has adopted the following
new accounting policy:

Perpetual capital instruments

Perpetual capital instruments with no contractual
obligation to repay the principal or to pay any
distribution are classified as part of the equity.
Fees, commissions and other transaction costs
of the instruments issuance are deducted from
equity. The distributions on the instruments are
accrued as profit distribution.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group manages its business by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has
presented four reportable segments.
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2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Environmental energy project construction
and operation: this segment engages in
the construction and operation of waste-
to-energy plants, food and kitchen waste
treatment projects, sludge treatment and
disposal projects, leachate treatment
projects, methane-to-energy plants, fecal
treatment projects, fly ash landfill projects,
medical waste treatment projects and
solid waste treatment projects, to generate
revenue from construction services, revenue
from operation services as well as finance
income.

Greentech project construction and
operation: this segment engages in the
construction and operation of integrated
biomass utilisation projects, hazardous
and solid waste treatment projects,
solar energy projects and wind power
projects, and provision of environmental
remediation services, to generate revenue
from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance
income.

Environmental water project construction
and operation: this segment engages in
the construction, upgrade and operation
of waste water treatment plants, water
supply, reusable water treatment plants,
sludge treatment, sponge city construction,
river-basin ecological restoration, waste
water source heat pump projects, leachate
treatment, research and development
of water environment technologies and
engineering projects, to generate revenue
from construction services, revenue from
operation services as well as finance
income.
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2.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

— Others: this segment engages in the
conduct of environmental protection
technology research and development,
provision of environmental-related
technological services, design of
environmental protection projects, provision
of environmental protection project
equipment construction and installation
services and sales of related equipment,
provision of waste sorting, renewable
resources utilisation, sanitation operation
services, sales of energy-saving street
lamps, and energy management contract
projects from which it generates revenue.

For the purpose of assessing segment
performance and allocating resource between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, goodwill, interests in
associates and joint ventures, investments
in other financial assets, deferred tax assets
and current assets with the exception of
intercompany receivables and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include current
taxation, deferred tax liabilities, creditors, other
payables and accrued expenses attributable
to the activities of the individual segment and
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
with the exception of intercompany payables and
other corporate liabilities.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales of
equipment and provision of technological
services, assistance provided by one segment
to another, including technical know-how, is not
measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation” (“Adjusted EBITDA”). To
arrive at Adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to the individual segment, such as
directors’ and auditor’s remuneration and other
head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, management is
provided with segment information concerning
revenue (including inter-segment sales
and revenue from technological services),
depreciation and amortisation and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations.

2.
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2.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. REDFBER(E)
(continued)
() Information about profit or loss, assets (i) B BERBEZER
and liabilities
Information regarding the Group’s RABE KEBH®E
reportable segments as provided to the BoRE kD HREATME
Group’s most senior executive management mAAEE RS E R
for the purposes of resource allocation and REZEATHREDHE
assessment of segment performance for the SN
period is set out below.
For the six months ended 30 June HENA="1HILEA
Environmental energy
project construction
and operation
RREREEREREE
2022 2021
—E--E -Z--F
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REEZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Segment revenue: 2B
Revenue from external customers RENREEUE 13,145,944 18,613,804
Inter-segment revenue P EpEE = -
Reportable segment revenue BYRE D HBhE 13,145,944 18,613,894
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of inter-segment revenue B BENE

Reportable segment revenue derived from REAEBNAEFZ

the Group’s extemal customers BAYRER

Pl
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Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
BERRARBREREE RRKBERREREE Hit Lt
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

—g-_-F -E--F C-ZB--E -E--f C-ZE-”E -E--F ZE-_ZE -E--F
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)

(REEHZ) (REER) (REER) (REBR) (REER)  (REER)  (REER) (REER)
HK$'000  HK§'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000

E®Tn BT BMTn  B%Tr  E¥Tn B¥TR  BETn BETx

4,219,870 4,318,203 3,478,939 3,112,935 603,930 450,292 21,448,683 26,495,324
421 539 - - 586,128 1,082,675 586,544 1,033,214

4,220,291 4,318,742 3,478,939 3,112,935 1,190,053 1,482,967 22,035,227 27,628,538

(586,544)  (1,033,214)

21,448,683 26,495,324
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2.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. REDFER )
(continued)
(i) Information about profit or loss, assets (i)

and liabilities (continued) (%)

For the six months ended 30 June

B EERAEBEZEH

BlENH="1HIFN A

Segment results:
Reportable segment profit (Adjusted EBITDA)

Elimination of inter-segment profits

Reportable segment profit derived from
the Group’s external customers

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation, including
unallocated portion

Unallocated head office and corporate income
Unallocated head office and corporate expenses

Consolidated profit before tax

Environmental energy
project construction
and operation
RANKRERRERES
2022 2021
“B--E  C—E--F
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEHR) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT
AWER
BYRED PR
({39 HEBITDA) 4,906,602 5,520,997
BEATHRT
REFEENREPZ
ATRENBEN
HBER
HEREH
(BERDEHH)
RARBRTREEHRA

APRERAREEFR

GaBRARR
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Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
BERREAREREE BRRKBERREREE Hit aE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--% <-Z--f% C-B--f -E--% C-E-"f <-ZE-- “B-CE —ZE--F

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)  (REER) (REBR)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT BT AT

1,334,647 1,636,791 1,067,376 1,085,657 145,181 340,818 7,453,806 8,593,263

(161,179) (334,846)

7,292,627 8,258,417
(1,684,504)  (1,436,973)

(1,087,198)  (776,569)
50,028 2,693
(294,861) (63,579

4,326,092 5,983,990
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2. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. REDFER )
(continued)
() Information about profit or loss, assets (i) B BERBEZER
and liabilities (continued) (#&)
For the six months ended 30 June BHENH=+HIFNEA
Environmental energy
project construction
and operation
RRMFEAREREE
2022 2021
“B--E  C—E--F

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (RIEER)
HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BETT

Other segment information: Http HER
Depreciation and amortisation FrEREH 386,502 296,770
Impairment of debtors EUREEF iR 55,665 121,109
Impairment of other receivables EtEUGUERE 53,886 -
Impairment of contract assets ANEERE 5,479 5,983
Impairment of goodwill EERE 376,705 -
Impairment of intangible assets BRAERE = -
Additions to property, plant and equipment BRI ENE « BiE RitE

and right-of-use assets during the period IREREEE 146,897 234,008
Additions to intangile assets and non-current  HiREEEFEE RBNTE

portion of prepayments during the period L IEENEE 1,875,272 1,732,453

Additions to non-current portion of contract B3I E AL AR 7 EEIE

asssts during the period 1 6,114,013 12,577,310
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Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
BERREAREREE BRRKBERREREE Hit aE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--% <-Z--f% C-B--f -E--% C-E-"f <-ZE-- “B-CE —ZE--F

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER) (REER)  (REER) (REBR)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT BT AT

467,334 358,498 118,345 59,932 55,578 41,620 1,027,759 756,720
28,127 - 124,054 21,808 12,100 - 219,946 142,917
- - 17,420 5,459 - - 71,306 5,459

435 - 919 2,275 - - 6,833 8,258

- - - - - - 376,705 -

- - 14,699 - - - 14,699 -
252,312 880,804 48,645 13,149 62,406 105,410 510,260 1,233,371
568,766 757,652 458,679 138,102 2,638 20,065 2,905,355 2,648,172

386,392 705,205 1,597,479 1,846,679 - - 8,097,884 15,129,194
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2.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 2. &

(continued)

(i) Information about profit or loss, assets (i)
and liabilities (continued)

FAl
]}ﬂ

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

REEARE (RE)BRAF

LOEER (&

B HERAEBEZER

(&

/

Environmental energy

project construction
and operation
RENFEERERER
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
R R
—E-CE ZE--E

ABZTE oF=t-A
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEH) (E2)
HK$'000  HK$'000

ERTR EETL

Reportable segment assets RTHELAHEE

112,384,544 113,804,359

Unallocated head office and corporate assets FARELARLEEE

Consolidated total assets GREEER

Reportable segment liabilities BYREZIHER

56,010,150 58,577,871

Unallocated head office and corporate liablities ~ AAEARFIRNLEE

Consolidated total liabilities GABEER

(ii) Information about a major customer (i)
For the six months ended 30 June 2022 and
2021, the revenue from the Group’s largest
customer amounted to less than 10% of the
Group’s total revenues.

FEEFER
HE-_Z-_—_FKk=
:—E/\ﬂ_—i-EUt
@A REAEEZAK
ERP W EGAEE K
mABRELR10% ©

b4

~
b



Interim R t 2022
Rl ieg s 107

Greentech Environmental water
project construction project construction
and operation and operation Others Total
BERREAREREL BRABEEREREE Eft ag
At At At At At At At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
i i i S S s R B

—ECCE —E-—F —E-CE —E--F —E-CE —E--F —E-CE C—E--F
~A=tR f+ZA=t-B  RA=tA +ZA=+A  K~A=tH +ZA=tH  ARR=tR {ZA=+A
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&z%)  (REER) (mEn)  (REER) (mgn)  (REER) (&=zn)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETL BETT BETT BETT BT BETT

41,331,875 40623673 34,206,429 32,645,367 4,291,041 4,470,619 192,213,889 191,634,018

1,797,908 8,601,610

200,011,797 200,235,628

26,829,561 26,475,112 20,915,207 19,802,079 2,819,101 3,384,266 106,574,019 108,230,317

27,364,172 27,654,089

133,938,191 135,893,406
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3. REVENUE 3. s
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WamarnT :

For the six months ended 30 June
HBZEAA=THILAER

2022 2021
“E-CE it a3
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEH) (REE%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT
Revenue from contracts with customers EF&#4K#
Revenue from environmental energy project 1B {R4¢IEIE B 2RIz
construction services 6,686,723 13,139,142
Revenue from greentech project HERFEERBRERB I
construction services 711,460 1,117,502
Revenue from environmental water project IRk TIE B2 Rz
construction services 1,436,836 1,417,596
Revenue from environmental energy project B {R4¢EIE B B4 R¥s Iz
operation services 4,426,421 3,711,837
Revenue from greentech project operation 4 &IRRIER B £ REKE
services 3,318,029 3,018,959
Revenue from environmental water project  SR{R/KHIE B B2 RIS
operation services 1,466,836 1,150,697
Revenue from equipment construction and  E&REE RZERE KL
installation services and sales e 213,639 388,887
Others Hit 382,282 61,405
Total revenue from contracts with REAHNEEE
customers 18,642,226 24,006,025
Finance income from service concession MRS IS EFE 4 HE 7
arrangements BB 2,806,457 2,489,299
Total revenue lhgatit:] 21,448,683 26,495,324
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REVENUE (continued)

The aggregated revenues from environmental
energy project construction and operation
services, greentech project construction
and operation services, environmental water
project construction and operation services
and finance income derived from the loca
government authorities in the PRC amounted to
HK$19,074,471,000 (six months ended 30 June
2021: HK$25,311,524,000) for the six months
ended 30 June 2022. The revenues are included
in “Environmental energy project construction
and operation”, “Greentech project construction
and operation” and “Environmental water
project construction and operation” segments
as disclosed in note 2 to this unaudited interim
financial information
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WS (%)
BE-_Z-_—_FxXA=+H
WEREA @ REF HE K
TR 2 IRReERIEH &1
FEBLREWE « FEERR
HERERBERBKES
RIRKIETEE & MEE R
Uk s K BT S R A SRR A
#19,074,471,000 7T ( & &
—E-—FXA=ZFTHIN
@ A : % #25311,524,000
T0) ° BEWEFT Al RIREE
FREBRERESZ | HE -
[ EIRAREBREERES]
DERIIRIRKIEEE BER
BE | DI(FRAREEX
RIS BRI RE2) ©
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3.

REEARE (RE)BRAF

REVENUE (continued) 3. W= (&)
Disaggregated revenue information BaFBRER
For the six months ended 30 June 2022 Hez—_Z2_-_—_#F#A=+H
LE7R1E A
Environmental Greentech  Environmental
energy project project  water project
construction construction construction
and operation  and operation  and operation
Segments BRERER BERRER BRA%ER Others Total
2 BEREE BEREE BEREE Hit it
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REEH) (REEH) (REER)  (REEQ)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT EETR E¥TR EETR BETR
Type of goods and services ~ EYRBHER
Construction services Bk 6,686,723 711,460 1,436,836 266,633 9,101,652
Operation services BLRE 4,426,421 3,318,029 1,466,836 115,649 9,326,935
Equipment congtructionand R ERTERE
installation services and sales & - - - 213,639 213,639
Total revenue from contracts ~ BFAYREAE
with customers 11,113,144 4,029,489 2,903,672 595,921 18,642,226
Geographical location of EFfEHE
customers*
Mainland China BEARE 10,799,550 4,024,527 2001020 595021 18,321,018
Hong Kong B - 2,543 - - 2,543
Germany [ - 2419 2,652 - 5,071
Poland il 278,244 - - - 278,244
Vietnam fiE] 35,350 - - - 35,350
Total revenue from contracts ~ BEAYREAE
with customers 11,113,144 4,029,489 2,903,672 595,921 18,642,226
The geographical location of customers is based on the location of which the ' ZEMELRRRER%E S -
services were provided.
Timing of revenue recognition KEERFE
Over time R—BERHRK 11,113,144 3,942,867 2,845,221 430522 18,331,754
At a point in time RE-BY - 86,622 58,451 165,399 310,472
Total revenue from contracts ~ EFA%NREAE
with customers 11,113,144 4,029,489 2,903,672 595,921 18,642,226
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3. REVENUE (continued) 3. W= (&)
Disaggregated revenue information BoOHFWEER(E)
(continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2021 BEr—_ZE-_—F,XA=+H
LE7X{E A
Environmental (Greentech Environmental
energy project project water project
construction construction construction
and operation and operation and operation
Segments BREFER  BERRER RRKEER Others Tota
pE RERES REREE BEREE £ ot

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REgz7) (REgz7) (REEwm)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RETT RETT BT RETT BETT

Type of goods and services ~ EYRBHER

Construction services BERB 13,139,142 1,117,502 1,417,5% - 15,674,240
Operation services BERE 3,711,837 3,018,959 1,150,697 61,405 7,942,898
Equipment construction and RERERTERS

installation services and sales K& - - - 388,887 388,887

Total revenue from contracts ~ EFAXINEAE
with customers 16,850,979 4,136,461 2,568,293 450,292 24,006,025

Geographical location of EFELE

customers*
Mainland China RE AR 16,642,183 4,134,128 2,551,234 450,292 23,677,837
Germany fteil - 2,333 17,059 - 19,392
Poland bt 274,010 - - - 274,010
Vietnam il 34,786 - - - 34,786
Total revenue from contracts ~ BFAYNEAE

with customers 16,850,979 4,136,461 2,568,293 450,292 24,006,025

*

EPEERRHR LK -

The geographical location of customers is based on the location of which the
services were provided.

Timing of revenue recognition KB
Over time R-BEER 16,850,979 4,086,597 2,495,896 295,790 23,729,262
At a point in time NE-BY - 49,864 72,397 154,502 276,763

Total revenue from contracts ~ BFA%NEAE
with customers 16,850,979 4,136,461 2,568,293 450,292 24,006,025
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3. REVENUE (continued) &,
Disaggregated revenue information
(continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue
from contracts with customers with the amounts
disclosed in the segment information:

For the six months ended 30 June 2022

Environmental Greentech

energy project project

construction construction

and operation  and operation

Segments BRERER BERRER
GE BEREE BEREE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEH) (REEH)

REEARE (RE)BRAF

Wz (&)
BOHFWEER(E)

TXEINEFANKEED
HMEMMBEESR AR

HE-_Z-_—_F,A=+H
LE7R1EA

Environmental

water project

construction

and operation

BRkH%EHE Others Total
BEREE Aft 3
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RE%FH) (REER)  (REER)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETT BRI BT BETT BB
Revenue ¢S

External customers HREP 13,145,944 4,219,870 3,478,939 603,930 21,448,683
Inter-segment revenue BriiEle - 421 - 586,123 586,544
13,145,944 4,220,291 3,478,939 1,190,053 22,085,227
Less:  Finance income e EBRA (2,032,800) (190,381) (575,267) (8009)  (2,806,457)

Inter-segment acjustments AHHFER
and eliminations B - (421) - (586,123) (586,544)

Total revenue from contracts ~ ZFAMKELE
with customers 11,113,144 4,029,489 2,903,672 595,921 18,642,226
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3. REVENUE (continued) 3. W= (&)
Disaggregated revenue information BoFWBER(E)
(continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2021 HEe—_ZT-_—FA=+H
LE7{E A
Environmental Greentech Environmental
energy project project water project
construction construction construction
and operation and operation and operation
Segments RREFEE  S6RRER BRKKER Others Total
L BEREE BEREE EERES Efp g
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RiE%H) (xiE%H) (xig8k) (REEE%)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT AT BT BETR BETT

Revenue L3
External customers MREP 18,613,804 4,318,203 3,112,935 450,292 26,495,324
Inter-segment revenue bile - 539 - 1,082,675 1,033,214
18,613,894 4,318,742 3,112,935 1,482,967 27,528,638
Less:  Finance income R BBRA (1,762,915) (181,742) (644,642) - (2,489,299
Inter-segment adjustments AEERER
and eliminations b - (539) - (1,032675)  (1,033214)
Total revenue from contracts ~ BFA%REAE
with customers 16,850,979 4,136,461 2,568,293 450,292 24,006,025
Certain comparative amounts have been ETUHRESBEEETSER
reclassified and re-presented to conform to the BEFEY - LEABHEZ2

current period’s presentation. F T —E o



114

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 81 %R R M5t

4.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

BR A Al 2 7
A&7 BB AT AR B H

charging/(crediting): B (Bt A) -
For the six months ended 30 June
HEXRB=THLAEA
2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REER)
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT AETT
Depreciation ik
— property, plant and equipment R EN S 324,572 249,745
~ right-of-use assets —FREEE 34,941 31,901
Amortisation - intangible assets BE-EAE 677,685 494,923
Dividend income REBA = (155)
Interest income FIBUA (79,361) (65,467)
Government grants* B S (111,895) (121,240)
Value-added tax refund* BERER (120,593) (88,671)
Impairment of debtors EREFEE 219,946 142,917
Impairment of other receivables HfpEUEERE 71,306 5,459
Impairment of contract assets BNEERE 6,833 8,258
Impairment of goodwill (Note 9)* BERA(MH) 376,705 -
Impairment of intangible assets mYEERE 14,699 -
Fair value losses/(gains), net: MEBE/ (&) FE:
Other financial assets - unlisted HEniBEE-
equity investment FLmRARE (318) (475)
Other financial assets - unlisted Hift i EE -
investments FEMRE 11,396 17,363
Employee benefit expense: EEEHNRX :
Wages, salaries, allowances and 1% %4 28k
benefits in kind BNz 1,780,644 1,363,032
Retirement scheme contributions BRI 2B 122,043 120,671
1,902,687 1,483,703
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4. PROF\T BEFORE TAX (continued)

ok

Government grants of HK$111,895,000 (six
months ended 30 June 2021: HK$121,240,000)
were granted during the six months ended
30 June 2022 mainly to subsidise certain
environmental energy, greentech and
environmental water projects of the Group in
the PRC and Poland. There are no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached to
the receipts of those grants. There is no assurance
that the Group will continue to receive such grants
in the future.

Value-added tax refund of HK$120,593,000 (six
months ended 30 June 2021: HK$88,671,000)
was received/receivable during the six
months ended 30 June 2022 in relation to
certain environmental energy, greentech and
environmental water project operations of the
Group in the PRC. There are no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attached
to the receipts of such tax refund. There is no
assurance that the Group will continue to receive
such tax refund in the future.

Impairment of goodwill for the six months ended
30 June 2022 was included in “Other income and
gains/(losses), net” on the face of consolidated
income statement.

4. KR

ok
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el
HE-_ZEZ-_—_F,"A=+H
WEREA - NEBEERK
¥ # Bh & % #5 111,895,000
T(BEz=-ZF=-—9FXA
=t+BLERNMEA : B
121,240,0007T) * EEAR
HHAEEEFEREFEZ
ETRERER SEBRER
RIRKIEIEE - AU
WS/ E 2 RIER G
MEMEBEFE - HATTE
RERNEERBRGATEE
BEZERMPE -

H= —EXA=+H
¢AMH $%IE¢IZ
ETRRER HOERE
RIRKIBELHBEE B
WG S ERR S
# 120,593,000 7T (#H & —
::__i/\ﬂ + B 1E @
A : #%88,671,0007T) °
BEA BRI ZEEER R
Ttz RIER GG REARE
FIH - BRITREREBEAEE
RE®ETEERRZ ST
ERER -

BE-_Z_-_—_FXA=+H
WERERZEERIBEA
mEEERZIHEMBAR
Wzt (B518)F8E] -
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5.

FINANCE COSTS

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

MBER

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLAEA

2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F&
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REE%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Interest on bank and other loans BOREMERZFIE 1,481,788 1,246,611
Interest on carporate bond, NAlfEH  BESREES
asset-backed securities, RHEERBEHRESCHE
MTN and SCP 220,713 122,149
Interest on lease liabilties MEBGELFIE 2,583 1,939
Asset-backed notes arrangement fee  AEXHEHETHER = 94,328
Others Et = 2,812
Less: Interest expenses capitalised  Ji - RERIRER L,
into construction in progress* FEZ (20,580) (30,866)
1,684,504 1,436,973

* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at

rates ranging from 3.65% to 4.55% (six months
ended 30 June 2021: 3.89% to 4.70%) per annum
during the six months ended 30 June 2022.

BE_ZT_—_F#~A=1+H
EREA - BERANENT
3.65%F4.55%(HE_T—
—FXRNA=FTRHIEARMEA :
3.89%ZE4.70%) Z FF| K i
TERE -
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INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
six months ended 30 June 2022 (six months
ended 30 June 2021: Nil).

Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the
statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits
under tax rules and regulations in the PRC.
During the period, certain PRC subsidiaries are
subject to tax at 50% of the standard tax rate
or fully exempted from income tax under the
relevant tax rules and regulations.
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Ao EE I EAERBERG
HEgEEz=—2=——FA
=+HIERER &)
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BERIER  RERNA
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For the six months ended 30 June
HERR=THLAEA

2022 2021
—E-CE “E--F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REEHR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

Current - Elsewhere: - EHER -
Charge for the period RfEE R 354,116 606,785
Underprovision in prior periods BEBREETR 28,772 5,528
Deferred i 600,451 767,464
Total tax expense for the period AERNERT S 983,339 1,319,777
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7.

DIVIDENDS

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLAEA

2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F&
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI
Dividend attributable to the period: THERE
Interim - HK15.0 cents FERS - SRL AR
(six months ended 30 June 15,07l
2021: HK19.0 cents) (HE-Z--
per ordinary share /\H_+E|Jk/\1lﬂ :
19.0%1L) 921,446 1,167,165
Final dividend in respect of BRER E-ERRFEL
the previous financial year paid RERS  -BRLER
during the period: - HK15.0 cents 15,011
(six months ended 30 June 2021: (BE-ZT--%
HK16.0 cents) per ordinary share NAZTHIEAER
16.0/(l) 921,446 982,876
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 8. ARAIERFFA ARIETK
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 2
The calculation of basic earnings per share BE_Z2_—_F#~NA=+
amount for the six months ended 30 June BIENXEAAZBERELRR
2022 is based on the profit for the period MEBIBERANGEREFE
attributable to equity holders of the Company EAEGMAHEARNB®
of HK$2,811,148,000 (six months ended 2,811,148,000 7T ( 8 = =
30 June 2021: HK$3,887,378,000) and T-_—FXNA=ZF+HLEAN
6,142,975,292 (six months ended 30 June 2021: & A : % ¥ 3,887,378,000
6,142,975,292) ordinary shares in issue during VARBRE BEITERK

the period.

ﬁf/\ﬂ +E|_U:/\1IH

JT
6,142,975 292 (= =T
6,142,075,2028% )= & -
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the six months ended 30
June 2022 and 2021.

GOODWILL

During the six months ended 30 June 2022,
in view of the increase in uncertainty and risks
associated with the business environment
affecting the performance of the operation in
Poland during the period, an impairment loss
of HK$376,705,000 (six months ended 30
June 2021: Nil) was recognised for goodwill
arose from the acquisition of Arent Capital Sp.
z 0.0. (the name was changed to Arent Capital
Finance Sp. z 0.0. with effect from 24 March
2017) and Uscudar Holdings Limited and their
subsidiaries, which was allocated to a cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) in “Environmental
energy project construction and operation”
segment. The recoverable amount of the CGU
of HK$645,896,000 has been determined
by a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budget approved
by management covering nine-year period. The
pre-tax discount rate of 12.84% has been used
for the value-in-use calculation, and cash flows
beyond the nine-year period were extrapolated
using a growth rate of 2.5%. The discount rate
used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the CGU.

8.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements #r & B 16 $R&K M =%

10. CONTRACT ASSETS 10. BHEE
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021

R=B==f 2
~AZTR  FZA=1-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (EE%)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
o3 BRI BT
Non-current EHE
Service concession assets REETCEEEE (a) 101,358,739 102,050,909
Less: Impairment R (81,999) (79,758)
101,276,740 101,971,151
Current ]
Service cancession assets REETCEEEE (a) 8,582,913 8,724,603
Unbilled renewable energy tariff FEEBLEERTERE
subsidy (b) 3,387,293 2,606,313
Other contract assets HiANEE () 602,795 707,037
Less: Impairment R (126,002) (130,249)
12,446,999 11,907,704
Tota 8 113,723,739 113,878,855
Contract assets arising from BOIRBEHELET S

performance under construction BEREROMELY

contracts in connection with service  Ef A [EVEE] 7

concession arrangements, which ANEE

are included in “intangible assets” 2,476,939 3,762,581
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10. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Notes:

(@)

Included in “Service concession assets” are
amounts of HK$495,746,000 (31 December
2021: HK$534,155,000) and HK$777,519,000
(81 December 2021: HK$822,617,000) which are
related to the construction service under Build-
Operate-Transfer (“BOT”), Build-Operate-Own
(“BOO”) and Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”)
arrangements rendered by the Group to a non-
controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned
subsidiary and a related company of a non wholly-
owned subsidiary, respectively.

“Service concession assets” arose from the
Group’s revenue from construction services
under BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements and
bear interest at rates ranging from 4.45% to
7.83% (31 December 2021: 4.65% to 7.83%) per
annum. Among the total of HK$109,941,652,000
(31 December 2021: HK$110,775,512,000),
HK$107,533,702,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$102,196,885,000) relates to BOT, BOO and
TOT arrangements with operations commenced.

Pursuant to the BOT, BOO and TOT
arrangements, the Group receives no payment
from the grantors during the construction period
and receives service fees when relevant services
are rendered during the operating periods. The
service concession assets are not yet due for
payment and will be settled by service fees to
be received during the operating periods of the
service concession arrangements. Amounts billed
will be transferred to debtors (note 11).

The current portion of service concession assets is
expected to be recovered within one year.
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EIRBEITREEEE
o BLHEE 495,746,000
T(ZE=Z—F+=ZA=+
—H : #%534,155,0007T)
N E¥777,519,0007t (=&
——®+=-—A=+—R8: %
#822,617,0007T) * 7 Bl #E
TAREEIRERE—BEE—
E([BOT)) « #E—&
“—A(IBOO ) &R —
B "B ([TOT) A
FEREW B R E 2 IR
R RIERE N E A R 2 B
RRRHZ EERY -

[RBSTCEREE]TIR
REBEHBOT » BOOKLTOT
TP 2 3 AR 7S W 25 P
EE HRFERLL%E
783%(ZE=-—F+=-H
=+—H :4.65%%7.83%)
TEFE - EREBE
109,941,652,0007T( — &=
—F+=-A=+—8 : Bk
110,775,512,0007C) % * &
#107,533,702,0007c (=&
——H4+-_A=+—8:#
#102,196,885,0007T ) BT
B/ AEE ZBOT » BOOK
TOTZRHE »

RIEBBEBOT - BOO&TOT
T AEEREEHRRT
SREEAMRE FAFIE -
maEREZHARNRHE R
BRKEIRBE - RIER T
CEREEERMARDBAZM
b 7% DA BR 75 o 5 48 & W 2
CELEHRBEBEINMN - B
BB O HAGEREREWERR
(FF&E11) ©

RIS S EEZ B
BOBARTR—FAWRE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & 81 %R R M5t

10. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

10. BRBE(

Notes: (continued) et - (&

(o) The balance represented government on-grid (o) AL RETEB BN
tariff subsidy for certain projects which will be FREEHA - EERERE
billed and settled upon the successful completion B R B AL~ B SR B R Ak
of government administrative procedures 2L NAREREIER
pursuant to notices jointly issued by the Ministry Bt & B 2 @A - BRI
of Finance, the National Development and R T 1T R 14 38 B2 R
Reform Commission and the National Energy B o
Administration.

(¢) The balance as at 30 June 2022 comprised () W—T-_ZF A=+HZ
contract assets of HK$399,338,000 (31 EABREBITBRIBEERD
December 2021: HK$415,871,000) arising from ERMEEZENEEDKE
performance under environmental remediation 399,338,000 T ( = & ——
service contracts, and HK$203,457,000 (31 F+-—A=4+—8: B
December 2021: HK$291,166,000) arising from 415,871,0007T) & [E1T 23
performance under construction management ITRERRBEAOMEEL
service contracts. BHNEE) 03,457,000

T(ZE-_—F+-A=+—
B : ##291,166,0007T) °
Such contracts include payment schedules which BEREEHH REFMER -
require stage payments over the service periods HEE R NE EBIE
once milestones are reached. FEIREE EA i
IERNE

During the six months ended 30 June 2022, BE—_ZEZ—-_—F#,xXA=+H

HK$6,833,000 (six months ended 30 June 2021: 1E75 @ A 0 A %6,833,0007T

HK$8,258,000) was recognised as an allowance (Hz2—_ZT-_—F,"A=+H

for expected credit losses on contract assets. 1F 7~ 1@ A : 7B 5 8 258,000

TIRERA S KA e
EEEERE -

The movements in the loss allowance for AMBAEEBAERRE &

impairment of contract assets are as follows: BT :

HK$°000

BT T

As at 1 January 2021 KR_T_—F—-H—H 70,445

Impairment losses, net FEEEEFHA 135,133

Exchange realignment PE N R 4,429
As at 31 December 2021 (audited)and R -Z-—F+_-A=+—H

1 January 2022 (') R T —F—H—H 210,007

Impairment losses (note 4) FEAEE A (14) 6,833

Exchange realignment BE W (8,839)

As at 30 June 2022 (unaudited) RZZE-—FXA=1H
(REER) 208,001
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11. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 11. RULER R ~ EfhfEULFRIR -

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS & RIEFIE
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
R-B-Zf RZE=—F
RAZtE  tZA=t-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEK) (gER)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Non-current JEENH
Other receivables, deposits and HtEWsE - He Rk
prepayments Bf5E 3,928,316 4,083,504
Less: Impairment - other receivables B BB - HRE (23,195) 6,967)
Total non-current portion E I TnE 3,905,121 4,076,627
Current b
Debtors JEUERR 16,459,176 13,772,488
Less: Impairment B EE (826,008) (661,888)
15,633,168 13,110,600
Other receivables, deposits and EtEWEE  BER
prepayments HAIHE 5,483,499 7,041,259
Less: Impairment - other receivables B BB -EhRizE (65,416) (13,383)
5,418,083 7,027,876
Total current portion HEE s 21,051,251 20,138,476
Total bk 24,956,372 24,215,103
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11. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 11, EUEREK EMWW iz}

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

Re MBRNTIRGE)

The movements in the loss allowance for FEWREE IR BERE &
impairment of debtors are as follows: BT
HK$’000
BB
As at 1 January 2021 R-ZZE-_—F—F—H 274,248
Impairment losses, net ﬁiﬁl@ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ 373,870
Exchange realignment P A 13,770
As at 31 December 2021 (audited) and e =
1 January 2022 (%‘“%V)&_§::¢ A—H 661,888
Impairment losses HiEEE 197,269
Exchange realignment P 5 A (33,149)
As at 30 June 2022 (unaudited) RZE-_—F,A=+H
(REERZ) 826,008
The movements in the loss allowance for HinfE BB BB EE
impairment of other receivables are as follows: Z“@JQDT
HK$000
BET T
As at 1 January 2021 nZE-—%F—H—H 3,521
Impairment losses ﬁ?ﬁ!@ﬁﬁ 16,451
Exchange realignment P 3 R 378

As at 31 December 2021 (audited) and
1 January 2022

Impairment losses (note 4)

Exchange realignment

R-_Z-_—%+-A=+—H

(%<<<%$?)&_7::¢ A—H 20,350
FiEmEE (M) 71,306
b 5 B (3,045)

As at 30 June 2022 (unaudited)

R-Z-_—FA=1H
(REEZ) 88,611
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11. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” are debtors, that were not
individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired, with the following ageing analysis as at

125

11, YRR - B YRR -
Re MBRNFIAGE)

[ R R~ Hftb U RIR
Be RIANFIE P EEL AR
WERERIRARHLEFERE
Z MR - RS HR

the end of the reporting period: ZEREE DT ¢

At At

30 June 31 December

2022 2021

WZBZZ% WZZ-—-%

RAZ+E  tZA=t-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEEH) (gER)

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BB

Current 5 4,877,589 5,823,916

Within 1 month past due BEASHR—EA 1,141,779 2,673,351
More than 1 month but within aEBR-—EAEFSR

3 months past due =A 826,052 842,527
More than 3 months but within BERB=EAERSR

6 months past due ~MEA 2,042,776 820,758
More than 6 months but within BERBAEARTER

12 months past due +=f8A 4,366,370 2,018,077

More than 12 months past due BEEAt @R 2,378,602 931,971

Amounts past due BHEE 10,755,579 7,286,684

15,633,168 13,110,600
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11. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 11. &
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

The ageing analysis of debtors, based on the RREZAMB (W =ERAB
date of invoice (or date of revenue recognition, if H - URPEERE)NE &
earlier) and net of loss allowance, as at the end of WERF (BB EEEE) D
the reporting period is as follows: WMEBRZERROTOT
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
R-ZBZ=f RZZ-—%
~B=tR  f+ZA=1+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEHK) (&=E%)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI BT
Within 1 month T%R—{EA 2,900,375 3,510,032
More than 1 month but within 2 months ~ #B—{E AELS AR 915,345 942,775
More than 2 months but within 4 months &M {8 AEA %R {EA 1,532,410 1,367,976
More than 4 months but within 7 months ~ #iBM{EAEL%H+(EA 1,506,945 2,579,633
More than 7 months but within 13 months i+ ERETZR+=(AA 4,693,881 2,354,411
More than 13 months #BET=MA 4,084,212 2,355,773
15,633,168 13,110,600
Included in “Debtors, other receivables, [FEWBR N - Hib U1
deposits and prepayments” are debtors of B RENFE | R EERE
HK$4,429,488,000 (31 December 2021: I BR 3k 78 ¥ 4,429,488,000
HK$3,299,533,000), which were measured at T(ZE=-—F+=-A=+
fair value through other comprehensive income — B : ¥ 3,299,533,000
as these debtors are managed within a business L) BEAEWERTIRA R
model with the objective of both holding to Bt AEM2EWAGE -
collect contractual cash flows and selling for RRABZEEIKWEZTNEE
working capital management and the contractual BEENKRREDRERE
terms of these receivables give rise on specified RHEELEESTIE ¥
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of BEAPEIE  MxEER
principal and interest on the principal amount RBZANIERERRNETE
outstanding. During the six months ended 30 HHELAEASYNAE K
June 2022, HK$22,677,000 (six months ended BEAESFEZIRERE
30 June 2021: Nil) was recognised in profit or HE-_T-_—_F,A=1+H
loss as impairment for expected credit losses of 1E7R{E A - B#22,677,000
these debtors. T(EHEE-_SE-_—F<A=+
BAIEAEA - &) RN IEmER
BRZERRERNEREES
EiaFELE o
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11. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)
Included in “Debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments” are bills receivable
of HK$91,553,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$127,034,000). Debtors are due within 30 to
90 days from the date of billing.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” of the Group are debtors
of which HK$26,405,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$9,948,000), HK$16,129,000 (31 December
2021: HK$17,343,000), HK$9,748,000 (31
December 2021: HK$14,211,000), and nil (31
December 2021: HK$11,657,000) are due
from the Group’s joint ventures, associates,
a related company of a non wholly-owned
subsidiary and a non-controlling shareholder of
a non wholly-owned subsidiary, respectively.
Debtors mainly represent revenue from the
provision of operation services for environmental
energy projects, greentech projects,
environmental water projects and the provision
of environmental protection project equipment
construction and installation services and sales
of related equipment and the billed amounts of
the service concession assets.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” at 30 June 2022 is an
advance made to local government authority
in relation to service concession arrangement
amounting to HK$24,938,000 (31 December
2021: HK$25,941,000) which is unsecured,
interest-bearing at the rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China, and will be settled by
instalments from 2022 to 2026.
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11. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

Included in “Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments” under current assets at 30 June
2022 is loan to the Group’s non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of HK$26,625,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$27,115,000), which is secured, interest-
bearing at 110% of the rates announced by
the People’s Bank of China and repayable by

December 2022.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” under current assets at 30
June 2022 are advances of HK$9,638,000
(31 December 2021: HK$9,843,000) to the
Group’s associate, which are unsecured,
repayable on demand and interest-bearing
at a rate of 4.75% per annum, and other
receivables of HK$1,872,000 (31 December
2021: HK$1,520,000) due from the Group’s
associates, which are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable within one year.

Included in “Debtors, other receivables, deposits
and prepayments” at 30 June 2022 are loans
to the Group’s joint venture of HK$27,554,000
(31 December 2021: HK$11,612,000), which
are unsecured, interest-bearing at 125% of loan
prime rate announced by the People’s Bank of
China (“LPR”) and repayable in 2022 to 2024,
and other receivables and advances to the
Group’s joint ventures of HK$20,868,000 (31
December 2021: HK$21,389,000), which are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within

one year.
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12. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND

129

12. BERRITHERREHEE

DEPOSITS WITH BANKS WITH MATURITY B=MEA ZRITER
PERIOD OVER THREE MONTHS
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
“E-CE RZEZ—%&
AA=tH  +ZA=1-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEHK) (&E%)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M BETT BT
Pledged bank deposits BEARTEA (a) 577,356 553,704
Deposits with banks with maturity BEdBa=EA2
period over three months ROTER 60,856 4,339
638,212 558,043
Note: Kiat -

(@) As at 30 June 2022, bank deposits are pledged
to secure certain bank loans of the Group and are
pledged to banks for the issuance of guarantees
by the banks to the grantors in respect of the
specific performance of the duties by the Group
under certain service concession agreements.

“Pledged bank deposits” of HK$29,861,000
(31 December 2021: Nil) at 30 June 2022 are
deposits placed with a related party bank.

(8 R=ZZE—=—F-A=+H"
RITIES ETEHW’E?%$%@
ETHRITERZERR -
&Eﬁé%?iﬂﬁ?ﬁ¢%@ﬁ:
BT RGBSR EERET
ZFEEBNE T RREA
BEHER HEERATEH
#RIT ©

RZEZZF A=+
75 29,861,000 (==
—F+=AZ+—H : &)
[BEEFRITHES JF%T_SZ
BAEG 5 RIT 2 TF 3K ©

B
=

%Nll
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13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

183. R RREFEY

At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
R-ZE-_f RZE=—F
AA=+R  +-A=t-A
(Unaudited) Ayd|ted)
(REEH) TE7)
HK$’00_0 HK$'00_()
BETT BT
Deposits with banks with maturity ﬁmﬁﬁ WR=ERZ
period less than three months ﬂT/ 486,305 810,482
Cash at banks and in hand fﬁﬂ tHRRE 13,588,034 14,236,461
14,074,339 15,046,943
“Cash and cash equivalents” of HK$1,569,495,000 R-_ZE_—_FXA=+tHZ
(31 December 2021: HK$1,434,697,000) at 30 7B ¥ 1 569,495,000 (=&
June 2022 are deposits placed with a related party —_—F%+ZA=+—H :;
bank. P.5%51,434}34697,OQO7E)Zriﬁﬁ
&fﬁﬁ%%’iiﬁj y=YERr Qi
FRIT 2T °
14. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 14. ETEREN - HMEAFRIE R
ACCRUED EXPENSES fEET & A
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 ) 2021
R-B-_fF RZZ_-%
~AB=tR  +ZA=1+-H
(Unaudited) Aygited)
(REEHK) TE7)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Creditors JERER 18,824,199 20,031,592
Other payables, accrued expenses and EthEMNTIE « B ERRE
deferred income - government grants E A - BT e 5,189,207 6,444,602
24,013,406 26,476,194
Less: Non-current portion B : JEENERER (797,033) (839,348)
Current portion ) 23,216,373 25,636,846
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14. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 14. &

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)
Included in “Creditors, other payables and
accrued expenses” are creditors with the
following ageing analysis based on the date of
invoice as at the end of the reporting period:

At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021

W=g-=%& W_E-—F
~A=TH +-A=1-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (B%%)

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT BRI

Within 6 months Ui 15,868,026 17,013,449

Over 6 months B fEA 2,956,173 3,018,143

18,824,199 20,031,592
Creditors totalling HK$13,588,664,000 (31 & $£% #13,588,664,000 7T
December 2021: HK$14,354,194,000) represent (Z2E=Z—F+=ZA=+—
construction payables for the Group’s BOT, B : & ¥ 14,354,194,000
BOO and TOT arrangements. The construction TIZENERREASEE
payables are not yet due for payment. BOT * BOOKRTOTZH T~ 2
BETEEMNNRIE BET

REMNRIBERI A
Included in “Creditors, other payables [ FE <7 BR R~ H b JE 7 5k 18
and accrued expenses” are bills payable MEGERAIFEEEGE
of HK$149,759,000 (31 December 2021: ¥ 78 ¥ 149,759,000 7T ( =
HK$133,350,000). Included in “Creditors, EZ-_—f+=ZA=+—8:
other payables and accrued expenses” are 75 #133,350,0007C ) ° [ &
creditors of HK$4,316,000 (31 December HERR - HM B RIBERE
2021: HK$12,970,000) and HK$79,462,000 HEAIREREEMNEASEE
(31 December 2021: HK$85,758,000) due BE N MIEEEWNB AR
to the Group’s associate and non-controlling FEIE R AR R 2 FEASTBR K -
shareholders of non wholly-owned subsidiaries, 2 Bl & % ¥ 4,316,000 7T
respectively, which are unsecured, interest-free (ZE=Z—F+ZA=+—
and repayable on credit terms similar to those B : %% 12,970,0007T) &
offered by the associate or the non-controlling 7 179,462,000 L (= F =
shareholders to their major customers. —F+ZA=+—H: B
85,758,0007T) * % F K IAY
REERE R RAREE
DRI ERR R4S T HE
%%ﬁZﬁM%E%%%M

B -
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14. CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND

ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued)
Included in “Other payables, accrued expenses
and deferred income — government grants”
at 30 June 2022 are other payables of
HK$438,000 (31 December 2021: HK$309,000)
and HK$10,388,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$11,438,000) due to the Group’s associate
and non-controlling shareholders of non
wholly-owned subsidiaries, respectively, which
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. Included in “Other payables,
accrued expenses and deferred income —
government grants” at 30 June 2022 is other
payable of HK$1,261,000 (31 December
2021: HK$1,314,000) due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary,
which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within one year. Included in “Other payables,
accrued expenses and deferred income —
government grants” at 30 June 2022 are other
payables of HK$222,985,000 (31 December
2021: HK$228,468,000) due to non-controlling
shareholders of non wholly-owned subsidiaries,
which are unsecured, interest-bearing at rates
ranging from LPR to the rates announced by
the People’s Bank of China and repayable on
demand.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

 H b FE AN RRE

&N Y

M

2 EFXA=Z+HZ
[Eﬁﬂfﬁmlﬁ JEFtE R
;ﬁLHAU\ K& £ ]
2wl &TEFEHZK% i
**/‘TZE@F&“H 7 s
43800075(_:—;_*¢+_
A=+—H : ##%309,000
o) REMIER BN B A TZ
JEfzE HXHX?ZﬁﬁﬂFEH
7 #10,388,000 7T ( =
—&F+-_A=+—8:
11,438,000 7T ) - B R
%8 RARER
E-T %A
[H b BT FRIE - FERHE
FEZW A —RFwE S
P BREEMERZENRBA
AIZIEERR R 2 HfhfE

4}>‘<F1

aF -

|I

—N-ﬁ
/mmmﬁ a[”)*
N o Tﬁaﬁl\

Eww
—L —

RIB A 1,261 ooomfg
——F+_-_A=+—8 B
# 1,314,000 T ) * H A&
R 2ERAR—FRAE
2o fE= 7ff¢/—\ﬁiz+
Azl HMEMNFIE - BB
B R A — Eﬁzﬁ% )Jf%J

&35&
/\ﬁ
\Ij_b)

o BEEMNIERER
CIPE 32 Hxﬁxﬁz,m
FRIE B k002 085, 0007c
T -_—F+_A=+—8:
/%ﬁ%228,468,0007c) iy
E|IE BN TERERF
RERBAARBITAHRZE
KB RBRENREE -
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15. SHARE CAPITAL 15, P&
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021

R=B==f 2
~AA=tH  +ZA=1-H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEHK) (£%#%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI
Issued and fully paid: BEIREESR
6,142,975,292 (31 December 2021: 6,142,975,292f%
6,142,975,292) ordinary shares (ZZ--F+ZA
=ft-H:
6,142,975,292% ) & @k 17,329,537 17,329,537
16. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS 16. KBEARTH
Notes HK$°000
Btk BETT
As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021  RW-Z-—F—-F—H -
and 1 January 2022 “Z--5+-A=t-BkK
—E--%-Hf-H -
Issuance of perpetual capital instruments %7K EEAR LA (a), (o),
(© 3,455,434
Distribution attributable to holders of KEBATERBANEEDR
perpetual capital instruments 16,255
As at 30 June 2022 (unaudited) WZE-—%5A=1H

(REER) 3,471,689
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16. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Notes:

(@)

During the period ended 30 June 2022, the
Company issued a perpetual capital instrument
(the “WTE Perpetual Capital Instrument”) with
a principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,845,900,000).
Net proceeds after deducting the issuance costs
amounted to HK$1,841,470,000. The distribution
rate for the WTE Perpetual Capital Instrument is
3.47% per annum for the first three years from
the date of issuance, and subsequently the
distribution rate will be reset in every three years.

The distribution of the WTE Perpetual Capital
Instrument is accrued in accordance with the
distribution rate as set out in the subscription
agreement.

During the period ended 30 June 2022, China
Everbright Greentech Limited (“CEGL”") issued
perpetual medium-term notes (the “Greentech
Perpetual Capital Instrument”) with a principal
amount of RMB700,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$809,410,000). Net proceeds
after deducting the issuance costs amounted to
HK$806,982,000. The distribution rate for the
Greentech Perpetual Capital Instrument is 3.35%
per annum in the first three years from the date of
issuance, and subsequently the distribution rate
will be reset in every three calendar years.

The distribution of the Greentech Perpetual Capital
Instrument is accrued in accordance with the
distribution rate as set out in the subscription
agreement.

BA SRR B RE

16.

(‘SEI7T>\IH

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

Bt

(a)

BE_Z-_—_F#~A=1+H
LIEHARE - RARBITXKEE
AT E([hRkEBEEXKBEER
TR AeSBAARE
1,500,000,0007T (18 & R &)
75 #1,845,900,0007T ) ° &
MBREEITRR AR » FTE5E

R 7 A6 % 1,841,470,000
T BETAMSRBTE=
& ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ$1&
o2 /ﬁfﬁ%tis’ 47% » H
BOREEBG=ZFEE —

R e

WPHREXBEATAND
& T3 22 8 R B 1o o P B 2
IREHETTRET -

HE-_T-_—FA=+H
IEHAR - RN KL BIRIR
ERRAR([HKREFERERR])
BITKBETHER([HER
RKBERIE])  Ke&d
% & A R ¥700,000,000 70
(FEE N #)75%809,410,000
JL) o KR EITKA
% FIISRIEFEARBE
806,982,000 T - B # 77T H
HBFE=F  #ERRK
BERATENDRRASF
3.35% ' HEDREBEEF=
BEFEE—KX -

HRERFKEERTAND
I T 122 R R B 1o o P H) 2
IREAEITRET ©
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16. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

()

During the period ended 30 June 2022, China
Everbright Water Limited (“CEWL”) issued a
perpetual capital instrument (the “Water Perpetual
Capital Instrument”) with a principal amount of
RMB700,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$809,410,000). Net proceeds after deducting
the issuance costs amounted to HK$806,982,000.
The distribution rate for the Water Perpetual
Capital Instrument is 3.3% per annum in the
first three years from the date of issuance, and
subsequently the distribution rate will be reset in
every three years.

The distribution of the Water Perpetual Capital
Instrument is accrued in accordance with the
distribution rate as set out in the subscription
agreement.

The above perpetual capital instruments have
no maturity and the payments of distribution
can be deferred at the discretion of the issuers.
The instruments could only be redeemed at the
option of the issuers. Hence, they are classified
as equity instruments.
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16. XKEBEEARTHE(#)

Biat - (%)

()

Fat

HE-_ZT-_—_F,"A=+H
LIEEARE - R RKEBR
NAE] ([ RKF ) FEITK
BEEARTA([KBKEER
TR XecBAARYK
700,000,0007T (A8 E R 4975
#809,410,0007T) ° &K%
BITRAR RSB FE
/75 ¥ 806,982,000 7T ° B
BITRERHE=F - KB
XEEBATENDIRR AT
F3.3% ' EDREEE=
FBEE—R -

K KBERT AN D IKTY
IR RIB R AT EA) Dk R
HEITRE -

@§$Iﬂiﬁﬂ%

LS‘ZH

ﬁ°&lﬂ@7$

BT NEEZER - B -
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17. BUSINESS COMBINATION 17. 26 0f

Acquisition of Tianjin Binhai New Area
Huantang Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Huantang”)

On 21 January 2021, the Group entered into an
equity transfer agreement (“the Agreement”) and
supplementary agreement with Tianjin Binhai
Environmental Protection Industry Development
Co., Ltd. to acquire 65% equity interest in
Tianjin Huantang. Tianjin Huantang is principally
engaged in municipal waste water treatment
and recycling; pipeline engineering; municipal
engineering; construction, management,
operation, technical consultation and ancillary
services of waste water treatment and reusable
water facilities; research and development
and operation of environmental protection
technology and environmental protection
products; renewable resources utilisation and
operation; sludge dewatering treatment and
its application. The acquisition was made as
part of the Group’s strategy to expand the
water business of the Group. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form
of cash, with consideration for the acquisition
amounting to RMB666,335,724 (equivalent to
approximately HK$800,136,000) and paid in
March 2021. The acquisition was completed on
1 March 2021.

As of 30 June 2021, the provisional purchase
price accounting for the business combination
of Tianjin Huantang was performed. The table
below sets forth the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed recognised at the acquisition
date. The Group may adjust the fair value until
the end of the measurement period if there is
any additional information. The finalisation of the
goodwill amount is dependent on the completion
of the valuation of net assets acquired.

Wi RIFBFHEREITK
BEEARAF(RRRE])

R—ZEBE-_—F— A =+—
H  KAEBEBEKXEZGRE
EXEREAR ARG MIME
wiEaE([&hsEl) RETE
Wi A RIERIEGSY%
RIRRHE - RIFIRETENSE
WIS KEENBEFAE
Eﬁlﬁ?ﬁﬁIh?ﬁ*
BEEPKEEOESR &
e wM\&mm@&mﬁ
R BREIERRRE R
M mEgE s BEERA
AREgE : 5L BRER
HEMR ZbWBIEAEEE
eI
Do mWENEENREINUER
EHRATA - WEREAA
R 666,335,724 7T (1 E R
%77 % 800,136,0007T ) * I
BER_TE_—F=ZA&f-
ZWER-_E-_—F=H—
A5 °

o 1

WE
A
gl
PRIl
b
=
>¢>H¢/
ﬁﬁﬂ+

=\

mﬁ%m
ﬁmqw

H

T EW%ﬁEﬂE%?E
& o A EFBEINEFR - K
S E AR B H A RAT B
DAAE -  BENRKERS
BRUR NPT IRIE A E M

BERETTMK °

i
—/|
it
&
E\
%
A &
m]ﬂ
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17. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Acquisition of Tianjin Binhai New Area
Huantang Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Huantang”) (continued)
The provisional fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Tianjin Huantang as at
the date of acquisition on 1 March 2021 were as
follows:

17. EEE0HE)
s X BB RERES K
EEARAT(RERE]
(#&)
RIkERBH-—_S=-—F= A
—B REREZAIHRE
ERBEZEEAAMBMT

Provisional

fair value

recognised

on acquisition

U g e

ER

BEARME

2021

T

HK$'000

AT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NRE 898,601

Right-of-use assets ERELE 94,143

Intangible assets B AR 27

Deferred tax assets EREREEE 8,122

Inventories FE 9,218
Debtors, other receivables, FEUBRSR - E fb FEURERIR -

deposits and prepayments e RFENRIE 379,585

Cash and cash equivalents B kBEEEY 5,520
Creditors, other payables and FERTERIR  HAbEAFRER

accrued expenses [EEtE (455,787)

Tax payables L ANEAE (3,270)

Non-controlling interests R R (327,656)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value A BRI EELFE (FRALTE) 608,503

Goodwill on acquisition WHEPTE £ 2 T2 191,633

800,136

Total consideration BRE 800,136
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17. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Acquisition of Tianjin Binhai New Area
Huantang Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Huantang”) (continued)

The fair value of the debtors, other receivables,
deposits and prepayments as at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$379,585,000. The
gross contractual amount of debtors, other
receivables, deposits and prepayments was
HK$546,296,000, of which HK$166,711,000 is
expected to be uncollectible.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited

HEEARRE (RE)ERAT

17. 5!%@77:11]:{ Z)

KR EESHERESK
fgﬁmﬁﬂWiﬁﬁﬁn
JE U B 3R E@ﬁ%mﬁ~
&é&ﬁﬁ X I8 R Uk BE B AR
m@ﬁﬁ%%Mw&m&mo
JC o FEUCER R - H fb E UK
g e NENRENED
4858 55 15546,296,0007T
H e #166,711,000C85T
R o

The non-controlling interests in Tianjin Huantang EIRENUEE B HERS
recognised at the acquisition date was measured R ER A2 EZEIES
with reference to the non-controlling interests’ AR #E 25 P b RBRIRER Z A
proportionate share of the fair value of net assets RFEEAABENLAIFE
of Tianjin Huantang at that date. 1§ o
The Group incurred transaction costs of AEBRZREEERHK
HK$4,434,000 for this acquisition. These KB4 434, 0007 ° ZER
transaction costs were expensed and included SEARBE T - —F X
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated BA=Z+RAItNEAMLEZEEE
income statement for the six months ended 30 mRPIHE Wt ATTTRE
June 2021, Ale
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the ERAWERXERE RS T
acquisition of Tianjin Huantang is as follows: ENMOT :
2021
—T-—F
HK$’'000
BT
Cash consideration HeRE (800,136)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEMERENESSEY 5,520
Net outflow of cash and cash FAREEHABRETE
equivalents included in cash flows RekBeSEMRLFE
from investing activities (794,616)
Transaction costs of the acquisition FAREETEERSRE
included in cash flows from IR 5
operating activities (4,434)

(799,050)
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17. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 17. EEE G (E)

Acquisition of Tianjin Binhai New Area
Huantang Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Tianjin Huantang”) (continued)

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to
be deductible for income tax purpose.

Since the acquisition, Tianjin Huantang
contributed HK$53,640,000 to the Group’s
revenue and incurred a loss of HK$7,966,000 to
the consolidated profit for the six months ended
30 June 2021.

Had the transaction taken place on 1 January
2021, the consolidated revenue and profit of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2021 would have been HK$26,542,681,000 and
HK$4,618,329,000, respectively. In determining
these amounts, management assumed that the
fair value adjustments to the acquired assets and
liabilities that arose on the date of acquisition
would have been the same if the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2021.

Net cash outflow for the acquisition of
subsidiaries included in the cash flows from
investing activities:

WiE RIFBFHEREITK
BEEARIT ([ RERE])
(#&)
MEERI I HEBRY TR
{EFR TSR

BUEBNAR » RERERE
E-_T-_—FXXA=+HIE
NEABAREEERWES
#53,640,0007C © I A4 E
A7 R &5 1878 % 7,966,000
=

WEBXGN B —F—
A—B#T  AEEHZEZ
T —FXA=1+HIENME
AZEGARERAND BB
7 5 26,542,681,000 7T &
#4.,618,329,0007T ° £ E
hELREE > BEERRZM
rERER=_ZE=-_—F—A
—BELE WEMSEER
BERKEBSIEEZR
AEFAERMRER -

SAREERBRGHSRE
FHAKBHBRARZRER
IS

For the six months ended 30 June
BEZXA=1RLAEA

2022 2021

“E-CE “E--F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEER) (REE&E%)

HK$000 HK$'000

BETT BETFIL

Acquisition of Tianjin Huantang WEXERE = (794,616)
Others it - (3,081)

- (797,697)
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18. COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

(a) Purchase commitments outstanding in

18. AIE

R|EMR - AEEERT

AE

(@) BRAAEEZEARDN L

connection with the Group’s construction BB AENT -
contracts were as follows:
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
RZBz=% RZZ--%
AA=ZtH  TZA=t+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (e %)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI
Contracted but not provided for BB REE 3,531,206 4,735,386
(b) At 30 June 2022, the Group had total future b) RZE-_—F<A=+
lease payments under non-cancellable B RETABREME
lease contracts (including short-term EAN(BER-_Z=E=-_—
leases, leases of low-value assets and lease FRNA=ZTHHEAMB
contracts that have not yet commenced as ZHHEHAEE  KEEE
at 30 June 2022) as follows: EREREEAA) K
SEHEMNBEENRE
IR
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
RZB==% RZZ--%
AA=ZtH  tZA=t+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (8%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI
Within one year — R 18,036 14,503
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18. COMMITMENTS (continued) 18. /#

() At 30 June 2022, the Group had (c) b'/q\: S - —_FANA=
outstanding capital commitments relating +8B AXEEAEFHH
to the purchase of limited partnerships in HEEZEEREES
investment funds not provided for in this MERETEERAAZ
unaudited interim financial information of RIEITE KRB
HK$415,457,000 (31 December 2021: 415,457,000 c ( =& —
HK$540,697,000). —F+_A=+—8":

75 ¥ 540,697,000 7T )
BEAEY ﬂiﬁ$ﬂi,§
Bz EPBER P
I o

(d) At 30 June 2022, the Group had an d R=ZZF-_=—F<A=+
outstanding capital commitment relating B AEBEEE@EMN
to the capital contribution to an unlisted FEETMRAKLEFTE
equity investment not provided for in this ZARBITEREEBE
unaudited interim financial information 24 479,0007E( T——
of HK$24,479,000 (31 December 2021: F+—-_A=+—8:%
HK$25,519,000). #25,519,0007T) * B#

P2 A N N =
AR OE B S & R R R B
e

(e) At 30 June 2022, the Group had outstanding (e) R=ZE=Z=F A=+
capital commitment relating to the capital H AEBEEEBRA
contribution to associates not provided for e NRTEZAREBIT
in this unaudited interim financial information & AN EHE 9,568,000
of HK$9,568,000 (31 December 2021: T(ZZ = —F + =
HK$46,509,000). A=+ —H : &

46,509,0007T) - A @
EWARAERNRLEEZA
B S E R R fE L o

(f) At 30 June 2022, the Group had f) RZZE-_—_FA=
outstanding capital commitment relating +H AX&EBABAE
to the capital contribution to joint ventures fmeaEhEITEL
not provided for in this unaudited interim AREBITE RNAEBIE
financial information of HK$29,250,000 (31 29,250,000t ( — & —
December 2021: Nil). —F+__A=+—8:

) - BEAEN KER
g HA B 7% & R

LN

B
;Eh”g

B
R
Ei
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in this unaudited interim
financial information, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions

during the period:

(a) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with a related party bank:

19. BB T 2 5

BRAREEZT MU HER
HaEBmmEE RS i
RO NREBREIAREILT

RN L

25 :

(@) A& H 8 — AR
1TRISL T THIRRE 5 X

5

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLAEA

2022 2021

—E-CE —E--F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BRI

Interest income FIBMA 9,413 7,262

Interest expense FEZH 8,700 15,127
At 30 June 2022, the Group’s bank loans R_EBE__F~NA=
of HK$713,525,000 (31 December 2021: +8B AXEEABHE
HK$740,269,000) are due to a related party ¥ 713,525,000 7T 2 iR
bank. TEFR(ZE=Z—F+
“A=+—8B: BK
740,269,000 7T ) A& &K
—REBHHRITZER
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(a) (continued)
Included in loans from a related party bank

are:

(i

(i

bank loans in aggregate of
HK$213,525,000 (31 December 2021:
HK$240,269,000), which are secured,
interest-bearing at rates ranging from
94% of LPR to LPR (31 December
2021: rates ranging from LPR minus
0.097% to the rates announced by
the People’s Bank of China), and will
be settled by instalments until 2023 to
2026 (31 December 2021: until 2023 to
2030); and

bank loans of HK$500,000,000 (31
December 2021: HK$500,000,000)
which are unsecured, interest-bearing
at rates ranging from 1.60% to 1.99%
per annum (31 December 2021: rates
ranging from 1.55% to 1.65% per
annum) and will be settled by 2026 (31
December 2021: by 2026).

REEsE 5 2
(a) (#&)
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B T IRITIRHEZER

B

(i)

(i)

WITERRBEE
¥ 213,525,000 JT
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 10. @EE A R 5 ()
(continued)
(b) The Group entered into the following related (b) ANEBEEALQF AP EIE
party transaction with an intermediate R ABIETSL T ™5 8 Bt
holding company of the Company: ARG

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZ=THLEAEA

2022 2021

—BC-CE “EC-F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Interest expenses FETH 37,886 44,825
Included in “Interest-bearing borrowings” RZBEZZFRA=+
at 30 June 2022 is the other loan of Azl EBE]BE
HK$820,750,000 (31 December 2021: ARNRA A EEZERR A
HK$2,444,600,000) from an intermediate REFEZEMEREE
holding company of the Company, which 820,750,000 7t ( = &
is unsecured, interest-bearing at a rate of ——F+=ZR=+-—
LPR minus 0.45% (31 December 2021: A : & %2,444,600,000
rates ranging from LPR minus 0.45% to L) HAEER - EE

85% of the rates announced by the People’s RETR A EF0.45% (=
Bank of China), and repayable in 2022 (31 ZZ—E‘F A=+4+—
December 2021: 2022). H: BN FERERA
%;ﬁo 45% ZHF B AR
RIT A2 B E85%)
A WERZ-ZZ_Z
F(ZB—F+-H=
T—H: ZT=Z=F)E

2 o
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with non-controlling
shareholders of non wholly-owned

subsidiaries of the Group:

145

19. BMH R 5 (&)

(c) AEEEEFFZENE
DA IEE B RAET AL
TTOIREBIRS

For the six months ended 30 June
HERR=THLAEA

2022 2021
—EC-CE —E--%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BB

Revenue from environmental water ~ BF/KBIERES
project operation services e 44,377 41,364
Finance income BB 7,830 8,525
Cost of construction services BIERBHAK 183,115 160,182

(d) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with a related company of

the Group:

(d A"EEE—REABAR
R T THIREE IR 5 ¢

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXB=THLAEA

2022 2021
—E-CE “E--F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REE#E%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Revenue from environmental water — RFKHIERESL
project operation services PR Es 57,498 42,994
Finance income BRI 26,193 27,317
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9. BT R 5 (&)

(e) $%@E@E/\M % =l
3T T B

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(e) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with joint ventures of the
Group:

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAAZTHLEAER

2022 2021
“E-CE —E-F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Revenue from environmental energy  BB{R4:/EIE B ik
project construction services R 715,684 238,896
Sales of machinery HERE 65,177 16,027
(f) The Group entered into the following related (f) ZAN&EE 8 EBENFE
party transactions with associates of the ST TR
Group:

For the six months ended 30 June
HEXRA=THLAEA

2022 2021
—E-CE —E--F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEH)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB
Service expenses for operation of 5K EBEEL
waste water treatment plants RBHRX 31,030 29,695
Sales of machinery HEHE 601 -
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(g) The Group entered into the following related
party transaction with a fellow subsidiary of
the Group:

147
9. BH R B ()
(9) AEBHAEE R
ZMWB ARG T T3
TR 5

For the six months ended 30 June

BEARZTHLEAEA

2022 2021
—ECCE —E--F
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REE#E%)
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Purchase of a limited partnership BELE-EREASK
in an investment fund —HERETAEAT 102,008 -
As at 30 June 2022, the Group had an R-TE-_—F A=+
outstanding capital commitment relating H AEBAEEBELE
to the abovementioned purchase of the MEEEE —HIKRER
limited partnership in an investment fund éﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&'é%’/} )
not provided for in this unaudited interim ZARBITEREESBE
financial information of HK$413,893,000 (31 413,893,000 (=& =
December 2021: HK$537,812,000). —F+=-B=+—8:
75 ¥ 537,812,000 7T )
B A R AR
A% RO B B R AR

B
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(h) The Group entered into the following related
party transactions with fellow subsidiaries of

the Group:

19. BB 25 ()

(h) AEBEEFRRMEQ
AETS T T 5B 5
5

For the six months ended 30 June
HBZEAA=THILAER

2022 2021

“E-CE —E--F

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEHR) (REEH)

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

M BB BT

Underwriting service fees AHREER (i 5,352 4,312

Insurance expenses RBHY (il 51,589 -
Notes: /}/?t E_Y\ ;

(i)

The underwriting service fees of the issue
of the RMB-denominated perpetual capital
instruments by the Company, CEGL and
CEWL for the six months ended 30 June
2022 were calculated pursuant to the
relevant underwriting agreements. Further
details of the underwriting agreements
are disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 21 April 2022, the
announcement of CEGL dated 27 May 2022
and the announcement of CEWL dated 13
June 2022

)y BEZZ-Z=_F1-A=
+HIEXNEA A2
Al RRBEERRRK
KKIEEEITZ AR X
BEERT A7 AR
B A Ty IREA A
HEtE o ApEE
—SHBRAAR B
BRZTE-_—_FMA=F
—AZA%E - KREE
RRAPR=-ZT==
AAZtTEBEZRER
HARKEBHA-T =
—FERNAT=ZBZAE
P o
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(h) (continued)
Notes: (Continued)
()  (Continued)
The underwriting service fees of the issue of
the RMB-denominated MTN by the Company
and CEGL for the six months ended 30
June 2021 were calculated pursuant to the
relevant underwriting agreements. Further
details of the underwriting agreements
are disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 16 March 2021 and CEGL
dated 1 April 2020.

(i) The insurance expenses were charged by a
fellow subsidiary of the Group based on the
relevant medical insurance schemes clauses.

During the six months ended 30 June 2022,
the Group’s office was leased from a fellow
subsidiary of the Group. As at 30 June
2022, the right-of-use assets related to the
office leased from the fellow subsidiary of
the Group amounted to HK$21,853,000 (31
December 2021: HK$4,908,000) and lease
liabilities of HK$22,174,000 (31 December
2021: HK$4,634,000) are due to the fellow
subsidiary of the Group. Depreciation on
right-of-use assets related to this office
amounted to HK$5,096,000 (six months
ended 30 June 2021: HK$6,565,000) and
interest on lease liabilities to the fellow
subsidiary of the Group amounted to
HK$130,000 (six months ended 30 June
2021: HK$267,000) during the six months
ended 30 June 2022.

10. BB A R 5 (&)
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(i)

Transactions with other stated-owned
entities in Mainland China:

The Group operates in an economic
environment predominated by enterprises
directly or indirectly owned and/or controlled
by the PRC government through its
numerous authorities, affiliates or other
organisations (collectively “Other SOEs”).
During the six months ended 30 June
2022, the Group had transactions with
Other SOEs including, but not limited to the
revenue, bank deposits and borrowings,
and utilities consumptions. The directors of
the Company consider that the transactions
with Other SOEs are activities in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business,
and that the dealings of the Group have
not been significantly or unduly affected by
the fact that the Group and Other SOEs
are ultimately controlled or owned by the
PRC government. The Group has also
established pricing policies for products and
services and such pricing policies are not
carried out on non-market terms and do not
depend on whether or not the customers
are Other SOEs. Having due regard to
the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion
that none of these transactions is material
related party transaction that would require
separate disclosure.
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 19, BB R 5 (#)
(continued)
(i) The Group paid key management personnel () AEEELXRTFEEE
compensation as follows: BABZHMAT

For the six months ended 30 June

HEXB=THIEAEA

2022 2021
“E-CE —E--%
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEHK) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BRI
Salaries and other short-term HeREMEHER
employee benefits B 11,394 7,381
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGHEIER 264 377
11,658 7,758
20. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 20. EMITEAZARERARE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL R AR
INSTRUMENTS
Management has assessed that the fair values ERETEReRREEE
of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank ¥ BEHRITER TR
deposits, deposits with banks with maturity HBiE=1EA ZfETTT_/TA
period over three months, creditors, debtors, FERTRRFR ~ EURERFR - A K
current portion of other receivables, deposits H W RIE « ke RFER
and prepayments, finance lease receivables, Z0E - BLA T M EOE -
other payables and accrued expenses, and EMmENREBRESERR
interest-bearing borrowings approximate to their AFEEEZAABEHMN 2 AR
carrying amounts largely due to the short term BEEEEEERESE F2H

maturities of these instruments. RZETAEREHRNEIE -
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20. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 20. e T EZARERARE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance management department
is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance management department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The
valuation process and results are discussed with
the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and
liabilities are included at the amount at which
the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of other
receivables, deposits and prepayments, finance
lease receivables, other payables and accrued
expenses, and interest-bearing borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing borrowings
as at 30 June 2022 was assessed to be
insignificant.
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20. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The equity investment designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income in Level
2 represents an investment in a property
investment company, with its investment
properties (being significant part of the total
assets) stated at fair value. The fair value of such
investment is determined based on net asset
value of the investee which approximates to the
fair value.

The fair value of the equity investment
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income in Level 3 is estimated
with reference to the expected future cash flows
of the investment.

The fair values of the debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income
in Level 2 are estimated with reference to
the expected future cash flows of the debt
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in Level 2 are based on net
asset value of the investees which approximate
to their fair values.

The fair value of the financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss in Level 3 is based on the
expected future cash flows of the investment.
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20. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the interim financial
information are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3—- based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the interim financial information on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

DAERBRG
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20. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2022

20. @M E 2R AR
BEREA RN ()

1565

BRARE

DAERBR(E)
TRILAEERESHTAZ
RAERERR

N

EifEZEE -

RZTEZ=FA=1H

Fair value measurement using

ERNTRBEGAAETE

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
inactive  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ERmS  EAUER EXTUER
ZHE BAgE BARE Total
(%-%) (B=§) (#=4) ]
(Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RB8%ER)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT 8T B8T L
Equity investments designated T RAL B AZH2E
atfairvalue through other WA 2RI -
comprehensive income:
- Unlisted ~¥rm - 3,899 29,389 33,268
Debt instruments at fair value &A% BEF AL 2ERAL
through other comprehensive &8 T & (3 AEUE )
income, which are included
in debtors - 4,429,488 - 4,429,488
Financial agsets at fair value D% B ABEZ S HEE
through profit or loss - 375,116 34,958 410,074
- 4,808,503 64,347 4,872,850
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20. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

20. EMTEZAREBERARE
RIBERRN(E)

DAERBRG(E)
BAALEGFEZEE - (&)

Fair value measurement using
ERATRERTLLENE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
inactive observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ERTS  BATHE  EAMIER
P N BAHE Total
(E-H) (5=8) (8=4) £
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(8%7) (8%7) (8%7) (&%%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BT BT e e

Equity investments designated T RALEFALHEE

at fair value through other WA ZRAHEE :
comprehensive income:
- Unlisted -¥Lm

Debt instruments at fair value 2% EEF AL R ERALZ
through other comprehensive (18 T &(:f AU ER)
income, which are included
in debtors

Financial assets at fairvalue A4 B ABR 2B HEE
through profit or loss

- 3,899 29,389 33,288
- 3,299,533 - 3,299,633
- 296,218 36,122 332,340

- 3,599,650 65,511 3,665,161
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20. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements

157

20. EMTEZAREBERARE

RIER R (&)

DAERBR(E)

t e

L
RSB EZ BE - (&)

E=BROnBEFENHF

within Level 3 during the period/year are as ANz -
follows:
At At
30 June 31 December
2022 2021
R=B=ZF RZT--%
~A=THE +ZA=t+-H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (E&%)
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BETT
Equity investments designated BERAAEGTA
at fair value through other Ef2EBALZ
comprehensive income: RAIRE
At beginning of the period/year RERY/E7) 29,389 28,067
Purchases e = 1,822
At end of the period/year REX/ER 29,389 29,389
Financial asset at fair value through RARBEFABREZ
profit or loss: RHEE
At beginning of the period/year RE,/E4) 36,122 34,051
Fair value gain NAEKRE 318 968
Exchange realignment B AR (1,482) 1,108
At end of the period/year RER/ER 34,958 36,122
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20. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

21.

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 30 June 2022 and 31
December 2021.

During the six months ended 30 June
2022, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (six
months ended 30 June 2021: Nil).

APPROVAL OF THE UNAUDITED INTERIM
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
This unaudited interim financial information was
approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 17 August 2022.

China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

R B E R FRARE

EY::

To the board of directors of China Everbright
Environment Group Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the interim financial information
set out on pages 77 to 158, which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2022 of China Everbright Environment Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries, and the
related consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the six-month period then
ended, and explanatory notes. The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited require the preparation of
a report on interim financial information to be in
compliance with the relevant provisions thereof
and Hong Kong Accounting Standard 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” (“HKAS 34”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”).

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and presentation of this interim
financial information in accordance with HKAS 34.
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this
interim financial information based on our review.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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China Everbright Environment Group Limited
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SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Review Engagements 2410
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed
by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by
the HKICPA. A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and
applying analytical and other review procedures. A
review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

CONCLUSION

Based on our review, nothing has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the interim
financial information is not prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with HKAS 34.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

17 August 2022
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT ENVIRONMENT GROUP LIMITED
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